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Board of Directors

Engr. Majid Salim Said Al Fannah Al Araimi holds a BSc in Engineering Management from the
University of Missouri, USA. He is one of the Directors who has played an active role in developing
the business of a group of private companies and several reputed educational institutions in the
Sultanate of Oman. He is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Galfar Engineering & Contracting
SAOG from March 2017 till date.

Engr. Majid served as Director Operations at Galfar Engineering Contracting LLC from 1997 to
2006. He supervised the implementation of several projects awarded to the company before he was
elected as a Director in the Board of Galfar after transformation into a public joint stock company.

He was a member in the Board of Directors of Oman International Development & Investment Co.
SAOG (OMINVEST) was also a member in the Board of Directors of A’'Saffa Foods SAOG.

N i i He is the Chairman of National Drilling and Services Co. SAOC, Uniter Gulf Energy Resources SAOC
Engr. Majid Salim Said and the Travel Point Group and holds office as the Vice Chairman of a number of private companies.
Al Fannah Al Araimi

Engr. Mohiuddin Mohamad Ali, is a Civil Engineering graduate from Carnegie Mellon University,
Pittsburgh, USA.

He is the Vice Chairman of PMA International LLC and MFAR Group of Companies which has
presence in Construction, Hospitality, Education, Manufacturing and Real Estate & Development in
the Sultanate of Oman, UAE, Qatar, Kuwait, Maldives, Sri Lanka and India.

- Engr. Mohiuddin is the Chairman & Managing Director of Alpha Fishco LLC, a fisheries sector
. “ investment at SEZAD. He is the member of Board of Directors and Board of Trustees of National

= : University of Science & Technology and various other companies in Engineering & Construction,

— Drilling, Hospitality & manufacturing sectors. He has been part of various Government and Private
sector delegations & committees.

Engr. Mohiuddin
Mohamad Ali

Mr. Mohammed Al Jamalani is an experienced and professional in regulatory, financial legal fields
and capital markets industry with more than 29 years of practice. In addition, he has knowledge and
experience in real estate development, construction and in trading businesses.

He was Vice President for insurance sector at Capital Market Authority beside holding various
positions by heading and/or participating and managing different directorates, committees and
official delegations. He holds Bachelors of Science in Economics and Finance from UK and has
completed post graduate certificate in International Capital Markets Qualification from London
Institute of Securities. In addition, he has participated in various courses, conferences, workshops

and seminars including programs in IMD.
/ Mr. Mohammed Al Jamalani’s experience includes directorship in the board of Oman Centre of
Governance and Sustainability, OPAZ, NLG, RSAME and Galfar and is also a member in their Audit
Mr. Mohamed Tagi Ibrahim Committees and is the chairperson of a charitable Investment and Finance committee. He supervises
Al Jamalani the management of a family group of companies.

Engr. Said Al Hajri is an entrepreneur who has founded few companies. He is a founder of Vision
Advanced Petroleum Solutions (VAPS) is a consultancy company that is providing petroleum
engineering solutions to oil companies. In addition, VAPS has built first ever regional laboratory for
hydrocarbon analysis (PVT) in Oman. He is also a founder of Local Line LLC which is a chemical
manufacturing and supplying company for oil and gas sectors. Previously, Said took several positions
in PDO as petroleum engineer, well services activities manager & new oil team leader. He graduated
with honors from Imperial Collage with a dual degree in Mechanical Engineering and Master degree
in Petroleum Engineering. He is also a graduate of The National CEO program from IMD.

On another dimension, as a contribution to the society, Mr. Said has worked as a volunteer lecturer
in Higher College of Technology teaching petroleum production engineering for the undergraduate
program for four consecutive years. In addition, he was MTC member of Oman Rail Company

Engr. Said Salim Ali where he contributes in putting contracting strategies, ensuring the contracting process is g4,
Al Hajri & transparent. Also, he was an investment committee member of Oman National Invest 5
Development Company. Currently, he is an independent board director of Galfar Engineeriffgd
Oman Shipping Company. { CRNo.1015133
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Engr. Magbool Hussein Salih Al Zadjali has over 35 years of experience in the Oil and Gas sectors,
with particular expertise in major pipeline projects, construction management as well facilities
projects.

He holds bachelor degree in Mechanical Engineering from university of Sunderland (UK). Engr.
Magbool spent most of his career in PDO, his last position was Engineering Manager (North) before
proceeding on early retirement, prior to which he also worked in Singapore as resident engineer for
PDO projects and then was assigned to Malaysia (Sarawak) for 4.5 years managing offshore pipeline
projects for Shell Malaysia.

J

Engr. Magbool Hussein
Salih Al Zadjali

Mr. Hamdan Al Shagsi started his career with Petroleum Development Oman in 1980 where he served
for 20 years in various senior roles, part of which, he was cross posted to Brunei Shell Petroleum for
3+ years as the Asset Management Accountant for Corporate, New Business Development, Marine
and Refinery.

In 2000, Mr. Hamdan joined Oman LNG where he served as the Chief Financial officer, Chairman of
the Tender Board and Secretary to the Board of Directors. In 2007 Hamdan left Oman LNG to be
a co-founder, promoter, developer and CEO of, Gulf International Pipe Industry LLC (GIPI), a High
Pressure ERW Pipe Mill in Sohar being the very first High-pressure Pipe Mill dedicated to serve the
Oil and Gas sector in Oman. Since full divestment of their stake in GIPI during 2012 to TMK, Hamdan
has led Golden Dunes International LLC as Shareholder & Chairman with diversified investments in
Trading, Oil & Gas Services, Marine, Technology and Real Estate.

Mr. Hamdan Ahmed Mr. Hamdan holds an MBA majoring in Financial Management, ACCA finalist 1989 and is a Certified
Hamood Al Shagsi SAP ERP Consultant on CO module. He is currently the Chairperson in the boards of Nama Holding
& Raysut Cement.

refinery and petrochemical industry with specialization in Project Management covering the entire
scope of project. He has had direct and hands-on experience in onshore gathering and processing,
Oil and Gas Plants and managed and led a team of Project Engineers and supporting staffs &
engineers to ensure project objectives of cost, schedule, safety, and quality are achieved. He is
currently working for OQ, a national integrated energy company and has exposure working in Oman
and overseas with Petroleum Development Oman and Shell Companies for upstream oil and gas
project in capacity of project manager for clients in Oman and internationally. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in Instrumentation and Control System Engineering.

/ Engr. Shihab Al Barwani has over 40 years of experience in upstream oil & gas sector including

W

Engr. Shihab bin Salem bin
Amer Al Barwani

Mr. Fazlin Anam has over twenty-eight years of experience in the Legal profession. He graduated
from St. Stephens College and has a degree in law from Law Faculty, New Delhi. He worked for
seventeen years as an attorney and legal advisor in the Supreme Court of India before joining Galfar
in 2012. He was appointed by the Board in the post of Board Secretary in November 2017. The
Secretary sends out the invitations for meetings of the board, prepares the topics to be listed in
the Agenda, records the minutes of the meetings in detail and follows up the implementation of the
resolutions adopted by the Board.

Mr. Fazlin Anam 4
" CR No. 1015133
Secretary of the Board P.O. Box 533
P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors ,| am pleased to present to you the Directors report on the performance of
Galfar Engineering & Contracting SAOG (‘the Parent Company’) and its subsidiary and associated companies
(collectively ‘the Consolidated Group’) for the year ended 31 December 2022:

Parent Company Consolidated

(RO 000s) (RO 000s) (RO 000s) (RO 000s)

Dec, 2022 Dec, 2021 Dec, 2022 Dec, 2021
Revenue 166,120 177,382 177,621 187,949
EBITDA 14,031 18,536 12,380 16,688
Operating profit 6,020 8,441 3,314 5,150
Profit before tax 3,436 4,634 156 1,279
Net profit after tax 4,628 4,634 1,283 1,255
Operations

For the year ended December 2022 the Parent Company achieved a net profit of RO 4.62 million compared
to RO 4.63 million for the same period last year.

The company financial position continued to be positive supported by a robust orderbook with stable
operating profit. The parent company has sustained a positive margin for the second year in a row due to
various initiatives taken by the Company as part of its turnaround strategy to re-organize, improve projects
performance and implement stringent cost controls. The positive bottom-line results came despite various
challenges, such as a drop in revenues by approximately 6.34% compared to the same period last year, and
the geopolitical fallout on the prices of raw materials and services.

During the year 2022, the long outstanding receivables of the completed projects have been collected by the
Parent Company. The overall receivable management has improved significantly compared to the year 2021
which has significantly improved the cash flow, and therefore improving vendor payments and debt management.

For the period ended December 2022, Galfar continues to maintain a significant projects pipeline of more
than 500 million supported by new project awards worth RO 285 million throughout the year.

The Company continued to explore opportunities to reduce operating expenses, to maintain market
competitiveness and to improve the financial results whilst strengthening the Company’s financial position.
Company resources are optimized continuously to align with the financial situation and the Company
successfully reduced its costs considerably. While revenues reduced by 6% during the year costs were
reduced by more than 8%, hence the positive bottom line.

Our subsidiary companies in Oman which includes Aspire Readymix, Aspire Projects and Al Khalij Heavy
Equipment incurred additional losses of RO 2.94 Million for the year ended December 2022 compared to RO
3.45 Million the year 2021. Our associate company in Kuwait reported a loss of RO 0.40 Million for the year
ended December 2022. The Parent Company continues to make 94% of the entire consolidated busi

The company is determined to improve its subsidiaries and associate’s performance and have
strategic plans and measures to overcome the associated challenges to revive the subsidiaries b

full support from the parent company.
ﬂ
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Director’s Report

Future Outlook

The Company is committed to turnaround and
improve the financial performance with a continued
focus to implement the Company’s turnaround
strategy which covers six priorities including
Restructuring & Reorganization, Efficiency & Cost
Savings, Financials & Liquidity, Diversification &
Capability, Technology & Innovation, and Public
Relations & Stakeholder Management.

As flagship for Oman’s contracting and engineering
business, Galfar is looking forward firmly to build
on its strength and to continue supporting the
Government and the local market endeavors
for economic growth and in pursuit of important
development and infrastructure projects across
various sectors. In the year 2022 Oman witnessed
positive changes to the business, legal, and tax
frameworks in the Country, forming a continuation of
development steps, set forth in the previous years,
with the aim of achieving, among other objectives,
fiscal sustainability & economy diversification.

The Sultanate of Oman is successfully implementing
a model of economic diversification, particularly the
liberalization of trade in commodities and services.
To reduce the oil sector’s share of the GDP, Oman
actively adopted a development strategy that
focuses on diversification, manufacturing, and
privatization. In line with Oman Vision 2040, the
government seeks to collaborate with the private
sector to undertake investment and Public Private
Partnership (PPP) projects in order to entice it to
invest in public services and infrastructure projects.
In areas including education, health, transportation
and logistics, communication and information
technology, agriculture, fisheries, and others, there
are numerous projects that are already in progress
as well as those that are scheduled to be completed
in 2023.

Your Company continued to explore avenues to
strengthen the company’s financial position in
a challenging and highly competitive economic
environment. As part of the company’s turnaround
strategy, ongoing measures to control expenses

improve the operating financial results in 2022.
The company expects to maintain a solid project
pipeline in excess of RO 500 million in future with
a significant number of tenders under evaluation
across a diverse array of sectors and clients. We
reasonably expect to be successful in a number of
those which will ensure stability and sustainability of
our strong market position.

In addition, Galfar has identified various diversification
opportunities in Construction Technology, Energy,
Minerals and other sectors that will provide long
term sustainability and growth opportunities for the
Company in the future. Recently and in collaboration
with our partners we are pleased to have positioned
Galfar firmly in the future of 3D Printing Technology
and its growing application.

Galfar shall continue its crucial role as a true
partner in development and as a company of
national interest through its well-established local
capabilities, through its vast efforts to develop and
employ Omanis in one of the most challenging
sectors, through its collaboration with the wide local
supply chain and various SME(s), and through its
corporate social responsibility programs.

Gratitude & Appreciation

We express our sincere appreciation and gratitude
to the Government under the wise leadership of His
Majesty Sultan Haitham bin Tariq and for all the efforts
taken by the Government to affirm the Country’s
fiscal position. Galfar has been instrumental in the
development of Oman’s infrastructure and various
national objectives over the past four to five decades
and is determined to continue so in the future.

As closing remarks, we would like to take the
opportunity to thank all our esteemed stakeholders
for their continued support and trust on Galfar. Our
sincere appreciation and recognition also to the
entire Galfar workforce who are driving the results
achieved and the transformation being at the
forefront of Galfar operations all across the Country.

Majid Salim Said Al Fannah Al Araimi

\R.No. 1015133
P.0. Box 533

and improve efficiencies in project execution have
contributed to reducing overall cash outflow and
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Agreed-Upon Procedures Report on the Code of Corporate Governance
To the Board of Directors of Galfar Engineering & Contracting SAOG

Purpose of this Agreed-Upon Procedures Report and Restriction on Use and Distribution

Our report 1s solely for the purpose of assisting Galfar Eogincenng & Coatracting SAOG (the “Company™) in
determining whether the Board of Directors’ Corporate Governance Report is comphant with the Code of Corporate
Governance issued by the Capital Market Authority (the “CMA") vide eircular no. E/10/2016 dated 1 December
2016 (the “Code™) and may not to be suitable for any other purpose. This report is inrended solely for Galfar
Engmeerng & Contracting SAOG and should not be used by, or distrbuted to, any other parties.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has acknowledged that the agreed-upon procedures are appropriate for the purpose of the
engrgement.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the subject matter on which the agreed-upon procedures are performed,
Practitioner's Responsibilitics

We have conducted the agrecd-upon procedures engagement in accordance with the Intemational Standard on
Related Services (ISRS) 400 (Revised), Agred-Upon Procediares Engagements. An agreed-upon procedures engagement
wwvolves our performing the procedures that have been agreed with the Board of Directors, and reporming the
findings, which are the factual results of the agreed-upon procedures performed. We make no representation

regarding the appropriateness of the agreed-upon procedures.

Thus agreed-upon procedures engagement 1s not an assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion of an assurance conclusion.

Had we performed addinonal procedures, other matters might have come o our attention that would have been
reported

\R.No. 1015133
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0 Grant Thornton

Professional Ethics and Quality Control

We have complied with the relevant etlucal and independence requirements of the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Inferwational Code of Ethics far Professional ~leconntants (incieding International Independence S tandurd)
(IESBA Code).

Our firm applies International Standard on Quality Management (ISQM) 1, Quality Manugement for Firns that Perform

Audits or Reviews of Finawcial Statements, or Other Assurance or Related Services Engagersents, and accordingly, maintains a
comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with
ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

This report relates only to the Board of Directors’ Corporate Governance Report attached in Annexure 1
(the “report”} and its application of the corporate governance practices in accordance with the Code.

Procedures and Findings

We have performed the procedures described below, which were agreed upon with the Board of Directars in the
terms of engagement dated 8 March 2023, on the Board of Directors’ Corporate Governance Report.

Procedures Findings

1 We obtained the Corporate Govemance Report | We found that the report includes all items
issued by the Board of Directors and checked that it | detailed in Annexure 3 of the Code and no
includes as a munimum, all items suggested by the | exception noted.

CMA to be covered by the report as detailed in
Annexure 3 of the Code by comparing the report
with such sugpested content in Annexure 3,

2 We obtained the details regarding areas of non- | The Board of Directors has not identified any
compliance with the Code idennfied by the Board | arcas of non-compliance with the Code.
of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022
B
7 i os’*:iﬁﬂf;i' tﬂw
Nasser Al Mugheiry . = -
License No. L1024587 3 Grant Thornton *
ABU TIMAM 2o, CRNot0o8ST7 5
(Chartered Certified Accountants) - Chartereg Certified B
8 March 2023

\R.No. 1015133
P.0. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman




Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors of Galfar and Management presents the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Company’s Philosophy

Galfar Engineering and Contracting SOAG is committed to good corporate governance and healthy corporate
practices. The concept of good governance envisages care of the Company to enhance the value of all its
stakeholders by adhering to proper methods of management, internal controls, accountability, corporate
governance rules and high level of transparency to the extent of not affecting the competitive position of the
Company.

The Company follows principles of the Code of Corporate Governance for publicly listed companies,
promulgated by the Capital Market Authority, wherein Transparency, Accountability, Fairness and Responsibility
are the pillars of good Corporate Governance.

Board of Directors

The Board of Galfar comprises of 7 members, all of whom are non-executives and three of them are
independent. The Directors are well experienced in their diversified professional fields and have given great
support to practice good governance, to supervise the performance of the Company’s business with the view
to ensuring its effectiveness and enhancement of shareholders value.

No Director is a member of more than 4 joint stock public companies whose shares are listed on the Muscat
Stock Exchange (MSX) and no Director is chairman of more than 2 public companies whose principal office
is in the Sultanate of Oman. None of the Directors are members of a Board of a joint stock public or closed
company which carries out similar business and whose principal office is in the Sultanate of Oman.

Mission of Galfar Board is to lead the Company and achieve its objectives, short and long terms strategic plans,
besides monitoring the Company’s businesses and its operations. In this context the Board gives support to
Executive Management, without interfering in their day-to-day works, to perform their duties successfully and
properly towards achieving the company’s objectives. The Board exercises its primary functions and duties in
line with the principles provided for in the Code of Corporate Governance and other relevant laws of Sultanate
of Oman and is assisted by various sub committees and the higher executive management of the Company.

\R.No. 1015133
P.0. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman
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Board of Directors

Sr. . . . Directorship in Other Joint Stock
Name of Director Designation Category .
[\ [} Companies
National Drilling Services & Co. SAOC
1 Engr. Majid Salim Said Chairman Non-Independent | National University of Science &
" | Al Fannah Al Araimi Non - Executive | Technology SAOC
United Gulf Energy Resource SAOC
National Drilling Services & Co. SAOC
) Engr. Mohiuddin Deputy- | Non-Independent | \jational University of Science &
' Mohamad Al Chairman Non - Executive | Technology SAOC
United Gulf Energy Resource SAOC
5 i SErm A Director Independent | Nama Holding SAOC
Hamood Al-Shagsi Non-Executive | Raysut Cements SAOG
National Life & General Insurance Co.
A Mr. Mohamed Tagi Director Independent | SAOG
Ibrahim Al Jamalani Non - Executive |Public Authority for Special Economic
Zones and Free Zones
; Engr. Said Salim Ali Al Director Independent | Oman Shipping Company
Hajri Non - Executive |Minerals Development Oman SAOC
i Non-
Engr. Magbool Hussein Director None
6. , e Independent*
Salih Al Zadjali Non - Executive |"Membership in Associate & Subsidiary
Non- None
Engr. Shihab Salem *
7 ) ' . Director Independent
Amer Al Barwani _ |*Membership in Associate & Subsidiary
Non - Executive

\R.No. 1015133

P.O. Box 533
P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman




Corporate Governance Report

Board Meetings:

During the year 2022, the Board held 8 meetings and passed 45 resolutions by circulation. The dates of the
meetings and the attendance details are given below:

10 23 12 30 11 18 & 26 13 26

Board Members
Mar Mar May Jun Aug Sep [\ [0}V Dec

Engr. Majid Salim Said Al J J J N J N J J
Fannah Al Araimi
Engr. Mohiuddin Mohamad Ali J X X X J X J J
Mr. Mohamed Taqi Ibrahim Al
Jamalani v v v v v v v v
Engr. Said Salim Ali Al Hajri J J X J J J X J
Engr. Magbool Hussein Salih
Al Zadjali v v v J v v v v
Mr. Hamdan Ahmed Hamood
. J J J J v v N J

Al-Shagsi
Engr. Shihab Salem Amer Al

o = : - J J J J J J
Barwani
\J (Attended) X (Regret)

Sub- Committees of the Board:

The following Sub-committees assist and support the Board in carrying out its responsibilities.

Executive Committee (EC)

The EC is a sub-committee of the Board which oversees operational matters. It is constituted to enable
the Board to conduct and monitor the company’s business and provides a mechanism for the Board to
engage, within the limits granted to this sub-committee, in decision making, oversight, and communication
on important organizational matters. It reviews the annual budget and business plan and monitors the
performance of all Company’s units.

Executive Committee Members Designation 11 Apr 28 Apr 08 Aug 170ct 8Nov 19 Dec

Engr. Majid Salim Said Al Fannah

- Chairman v ol v v v X
Al Araimi
Engr. Mohiuddin Mohamad Ali Member v v N v v v
Engr. Shih lem Amer Al
ngr. Shihab Salem Amer Member J J N N N

Barwani

Engr. Magbool Hussein Salih Al
Zadjali

Member v v v v v

R.No. 1015133

P.0. Box 533
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Audit Committee (AC)

The AC comprises of 3 independent members. The primary function of AC is to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities of monitoring and overseeing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems,
procedures, financial reporting process, the effectiveness of the internal audit function and recommends
the appointment of the external auditor. In performing its duties, the committee maintains effective working
relationships with the board of directors, management, and the external and internal auditors. The Audit
Committee held 4 meetings in the year 2022. The dates of the meetings and the attendance details are given
below:

Audit Committee Members Designation 3-Mar 8-May 07-Aug 06-Nov
Mr. Hamdan Ahmed Hamood Al-Shagsi Chairman v v v v
Mr. Mohamed Taqi Ibrahim Al Jamalani Member v v v v
Engr. Said Salim Ali Al Hajri Member v v v X

Human Resource Nomination and Remuneration Committee (HRN&RC):

The Human Resource Nomination and Remuneration Committee (HRN&RC) comprises of 3 members. Other
and was formed by the Board in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance
for Public Listed Companies. The Committee scrutinizes Board candidate applications and assist the annual
general meeting of the company in the nomination of proficient directors for election. It also assists the board
in selecting the suitable executives to the executive management and oversee the succession planning for
such key executives. The HRN&RC Committee held 2 meetings in the year 2022. The date of the meeting and
the attendance details are given below:

Members of the Committee Designation 9-Mar 29-Dec
Engr. Said Salim Ali Al Hajri Chairman v v
Engr. Mohiuddin Mohamad Al Member v v
Engr. Shihab Salem Amer Al Barwani Member - v

\R.No. 1015133
P.0. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman




Corporate Governance Report

Sitting Fees & Remuneration to the Board of Directors:

OMR 700 was fixed by the shareholders as sitting fee for the year 2022 for each Board meeting and OMR 400
for each of the sub- committees meeting. The total amount of the sitting fees for board and sub-committee
meetings held in 2022 is OMR 47,800.

Name of Director Sitting Fees Total OMR

1 Engr. Majid Salim Said Al Fannah Al Araimi 6,200 6,200
2 | Engr. Mohiuddin Mohamad Ali 6,000 6,000
3 Mr. Hamdan Ahmed Hamood Al-Shagsi 7,200 7,200
6 | Mr. Mohamed Tagqi Ibrahim Al Jamalani 7,200 7,200
7 | Engr. Said Salim Ali Al Hajri 6,200 6,200
8 | Engr. Magbool Hussein Salih Al Zadjali 8,000 8,000
9 | Engr. Shihab Salem Amer Al Barwani 7,000 7,000

Total 47,800 47,800

Note: During 2022 the sitting fees dues of OMR.112,900 from the earlier years has been paid.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting for the year 2021 was held on 31st March 2022. The attendance details are given
below.

Name of Director Designation Attendance
1 |Engr. Majid Salim Said Al Fannah Al Araimi Chairman v
2 | Engr. Mohiuddin Mohamad Ali Vice Chairman v
3 |Mr. Mohamed Taqi Ibrahim Al Jamalani Director v
4 | Engr. Said Salim Ali Al Hajri Director v
5 |Engr. Magbool Hussein Salih Al Zadjali Director X
6 |Mr. Hamdan Ahmed Hamood Al-Shagsi Director

\R.No. 1015133

P.O. Box 533
P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman
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Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR):

In line with Principal 13 of the code of Corporate
Governance, Galfar integrates its business values
and operations to support and enhance the
national socio-economic objective of Oman and to
support community needs. Galfar is able to make a
difference within its capabilities both monetarily and
technically, by contributing to local communities
wherever we deliver our projects. The Company
is also active in supporting innovation and safety
campaigns throughout the country and are always
striving to improve stakeholder relationship and
enhance reputation & standing.

Procedure for Standing as a
Candidate for the Board:

The Company’s Board of Directors comes up for
election once in three years. The present board
was elected in the Ordinary General Meeting held
in 2020 and new board of Directors will be elected
in the upcoming Ordinary Annual General Meeting.

The right to stand as a candidate for membership
of the Board of Directors of the Company is open to
shareholders and non-shareholders who satisfy the
legal requirements provided for in the Commercial
Company Law, the Articles of Associations of the
Company and principles of the Code of Corporate
Governance.

Any person who wishes to stand as a candidate for
the Board and is eligible for the same as per the
regulations as well as the Articles of association, is
required to submit the candidacy form as prescribed
by CMA. A candidate who stands for election to the
Board is elected at the General Meeting by following
the procedures laid down in the Commercial
Companies Law, and rules and regulations issued
by the CMA. The Company’s Legal Advisor reviews
the candidacy forms to ensure that all the required

Key Management Remuneration:

Total remuneration during the financial year 2022 to
key management staff was RO 731,805/-.

Non-Compliance:

The Company complies with the principles of
Code of Corporate Governance and there were no
penalties imposed on the Company in the year 2022.

Compliance with Rules and
Regulations:

The Company has been following the applicable
rules and regulations issued by MSX, CMA and
those stipulated in the Commercial Companies Law
and the Articles of Association of the Company.
The Compliance with Rules and Regulations
are monitored and ensured jointly by the Legal
Department and Internal Audit in coordination with
the other units.

The Company has in place internal regulations
and control systems duly approved by the Board
which includes Manual of Authority, policies for
Whistle blowing, Code of conduct, Related Party
Transactions, Revenue Recognition in addition
to a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. The
Company follows the disclosure guidelines for
Public Listed Companies issued by the Muscat
Securities Market.

Communication with Shareholders
and Investors:

The Company maintains good communication with
shareholders and Investors and responds as much
as possible to their queries and requests in line with
the disclosures rules.

The Company publishes its un-audited financial
results in MSX on a quarterly basis and the audited
financial statements annually. Detailed Alpafcidke >
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statements are sent to shareholders /: equest. :
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forms an integral part of the Annual Re
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information is recorded and the candidates satisfy
all the terms and conditions of the election process.
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Statement on Market Price and distribution of Holdings:
Market High/Low price during each month of 2022:

Month High Low Close
Jan-22 0.079 0.073 0.074
Feb-22 0.074 0.068 0.068
Mar-22 0.091 0.068 0.088
Apr-22 0.109 0.086 0.106
May-22 0.113 0.104 0.108
Jun-22 0.108 0.102 0.102
Jul-22 0.131 0.104 0.131
Aug-22 0.169 0.131 0.165
Sep-22 0.168 0.159 0.165
Oct-22 0.169 0.149 0.152
Nov-22 0.185 0.150 0.174
Dec-22 0.183 0.166 0.174

Distribution of Ownership of Shares shareholders at 2022 (Including Shares preferential voting rights)

Category Sharr‘le:oc:iers No. of Shares % of Shareholding

1. Less than 5% 3,581 98,744,134 33.97%
2. 5% to 10% 2 36,009,701 12.39%
3. Above 10% 4 155,897,111 53.64%
Total 3,587 290,650,946 100.00%

There are no Securities / Convertible Financial Instruments as on the reporting date which will have an impact
on the Shareholders’ equity.

Profile of the Statutory Auditor

Abu Timam Grant Thornton is a leading accountant and consulting firm providing assurance, tax and advisory
services. The organization has more than 2,500 partners spread across the globe who helps clients with their
knowledge and experience. The Omani arm of Grant Thornton International, is headquartered in Muscat with a

g iyt . [ C.R No. 1015133
audit firms allowed to audit joint stock companies. P.0. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
@

Suitanate of Oman




_bils

JAlfar

Audit fees of the Company and Subsidiaries:

Audit Fees of Company and Subsidiaries and fees for other services paid to the Auditors for 2022

Amount (In RO)

Particulars Others
1. |Galfar Engineering and Contracting SOAG 59,500 1,250
2. | Al Khalij Heavy Equipment & Engineering LLC (Subsidiary) 2,000 200
3. |Aspire Projects & Services SPC (Subsidiary) 2,500
4. |Galfar Aspire Ready-mix SPC (Subsidiary) 2,500

The Board of Directors acknowledges the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
applicable standards and rules. The internal control systems of the Company are efficient and adequate and
that it complies with internal rules and regulations and there is no material matter that affects the continuation
of the Company and its ability to continue its operations during the next financial year.

Majid Salim Said Al Fannah Al Araimi

Chairman

\R.No. 1015133

P.O. Box 533
P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman

ﬂ



= S/AEATE
: CR No. 1015133
P.O. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman




] .
- ¥
-
- Y
4 e R.No. 1015133
] - P.0. Box 533
] - E o= P.C. 100, Muscat
- - T o A Sultanate of Oman
: R =
[ Y ol
- 3
L
i | " 3 " o - =
% 4 o =
: | - 1



Management Deliberation &

Analysis Report

General Overview

Despite external financial and economic challenges
in 2022, we continued to work closely with our
stakeholders to achieve a healthy recovery, and
the Oman Construction industry experienced
significant improvements. In addition to the revival
of the hydrocarbon sector, Covid-19 restrictions
were lifted, which contributed to the overall
expansion of the economy.

In addition, the year was also accompanied with
massive changes to the business, legal, and tax
frameworks in the Country, forming a continuation of
development steps, set forth in the previous years,
with the aim of achieving, among other objectives,
fiscal sustainability & economy diversification.

The Sultanate of Oman is successfully implementing
a model of economic diversification, particularly the
liberalization of trade in commodities and services.
To reduce the oil sector’s share of the GDP, Oman
actively adopted a development strategy that
focuses on diversification, manufacturing, and
privatization. In line with Oman Vision 2040, the
government seeks to collaborate with the private
sector to undertake investment and Public Private

Partnership (PPP) projects in order to entice it to
invest in public services and infrastructure projects.
In areas including education, health, transportation
and logistics, communication and information
technology, agriculture, fisheries, and others, there
are numerous projects that are already in progress
as well as those that are scheduled to be completed
in 2023.

The country’s stable credit rating improved the
overall investment climate This will be significant
improvement in Oman’s fiscal performance and
balance of payments positions. Oman has exerted
significant efforts to reduce public debt benefiting
from additional revenue, improvement in economic
growth will be supported by higher hydrocarbon
production and a pickup in investments.

The Sultanate 2023 budget has been prepared
based on a set of economic and social objectives
such as economic growth of not less than 5%,
maintaining an inflation rate of no more than 3%,
continuity of economic diversification policies,
creating employment, improving Oman’s credit
rating, developing income-generating sources
for governorates, digital transformation and
maintaining spending on basic services. Also, the
construction industry in Oman is expected to rise
by an average of 6.0% annually between 2023 and
2024, the highest growth predicted in the GCC.

Performance overview in 2022

The company is improving under the direction of
the new management team, and Galfar will continue
to rank among the top construction contractors in
Oman after reporting profit for the second year in a
row starting in 2021. The Transformation Strategy
has generated a lot of interest among various
stakeholders from various industries and Units
since the Galfar management initially announced it
in 2020. Moreover, despite the challenging market
conditions, Galfar has acquired a significant new
orderbook of RO 285 million for the year 2022. The
Company is committed to continued improvement
in order to fulfil its strategic objectives of cond uc
business in a way that is beneficial to stakeholge
Achieving sustainability by improving
delivery excellence, building strategic partne

@
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with stakeholders, enriching in-country value, and
investing in talent and innovative solutions are some
of the key priorities of the Company. Moreover,
our ability to meet future challenges depends on
constantly upgrading our capabilities to ensure
highest quality, health, safety, and environmental
standards.

The Company managed to generate a positive cash
flow during the year. The Company was successful
in collecting certain long pending receivables from
its clients. This has facilitated to reduce its bank
borrowing to record lows. Asset turnover ratio for
the year is also very much improved in comparison
to previous periods.

The Group Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 recorded a Turnover
of RO 177.6 million (2021: RO 187.9 million) with
a profit after tax of RO 1.3 million (2021: RO 1.3
million). The Parent Company’s Turnover for the
year ended 2022 was RO 166.12 million (2021: RO
177.4 million) with a profit after tax of RO 4.6 million
(2021: RO. 4.6 million).

The performance of the subsidiaries as at the year
ended 2022 are as follows:

Galfar Aspire Ready-mix SPC, which produces
ready mix concrete, recorded a turnover of RO 12.6
million (2021: RO 11.3 million) with a loss after tax
RO 1.2 million (2021: loss RO 0.8 million).

Aspire Projects and Services SPC which is a
specialized engineering and services company had
a turnover of RO 1.5 million (2021: RO 2.9 million)
with a loss of RO 1.6 million (2021: loss of RO 2.6
million).

Al Khalij Heavy Equipment & Engineering LLC
which specializes in hiring out of equipment had
a turnover of RO 1.9 million (2021: RO 1.6 million)
and made a loss of RO 0.04 million (2021: loss of
RO 0.04 million).

During the year under review the Company has
received new orders worth RO 285 Million which
includes additional work within the available
contracts worth RO 45 million. This has contributed
to increase the value of orders on hand as on 31
December 2022 above RO 500 million.

@

Business Scenario

The “transformation strategy” has helped the
Company to develop strategic thinking that has
elevated the organizational culture and its human
capital to a higher, more performance-oriented
way of thinking, innovating, and working. These six
strategic priorities are Restructuring & Capabilities,
Project Delivery Excellence, Financial & Liquidity,
Technology & Innovation, Diversification and Brand
Reputation. This is leading the way for Galfar to
reach its heights as planned by the management.
All operational units in the company have been
reconfigured to adapt the market changes and line
up with the diversification streams laid out by the
country as part of its 2040 vision.

One of the key strategic priority is Technology &
Innovation, the business activities are significantly
impacted by technology and innovation. Any firm,
regardless of size, may benefit greatly from using
cutting-edge technology to fulfil customer demands
while also boosting productivity and profitability.
As a result, Galfar lists “Technology & Innovation”
as one of his top priorities in order to fully digitize
its business and drive the adoption of technology
from the Fourth Industrial Revolution (4IR) in the
construction sector.

Galfar is also looking for long-term revenue
streams as part of its transformation strategy and
diversification plan in order to fulfil its corporate
social responsibility commitment to a greener
future. Galfar has been attempting to transform
into a business capable of offering reliable revenue
streams to its stakeholders. Oman is becoming
more interested in the use of renewable energy and
this objective is consistent with Oman Vision 2040
to reduce reliance on non-renewable resources,
successfully utilize resources like renewable energy,
and increase economic sector competitiveness.
Recent years have seen an unparalleled influx of
investment and activity in the energy sector, as
seen by the rising contribution of hydro, wind, solar,
and geothermal energy sources to the progdkr
of electricity globally. Additionally, th #r
began working on PPP projects in O
of the diversification strategy and c
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market situation. To attract the private sector
to invest in infrastructure and public services,
the Ministry of Finance is working with other
government agencies to undertake PPP projects.
In areas including education, health, transportation
and logistics, communication and information
technology, agriculture, fisheries, and others, there
are numerous projects that are already in progress
as well as those that are scheduled to be completed
in 2023.

Galfar has adapted to Oman'’s Vision 2040, ensuring
that we contribute in ways that would enhance
sustainability, promote nationalization, and provide
innovative headway in our chosen disciplines.
Galfar will also be able to take advantage of the
Company’s vast resource base and infrastructure
as a result of this.

Quality, Health, Safety and
Environment

Galfar consistently maintains a competitive edge
through its Management System certifications in
compliance with International Standards ISO 9001:
2015 &ISO/TS 29001:2010 for Quality Management
System, ISO 45001 for Occupational Health &
Safety Management System and ISO 14001:2015
for Environment Management System, which has
given Galfar a distinctive recognition in the industry.

Galfar’'s HSE performance for the year 2022 has
been impressive with a Lost Time Injury Frequency
(LTIF) of 0.07 against the set limit of 0.18 and a
Motor vehicle incident Frequency (MVIF) of 3.02
against the set limit of 2.20, despite several critical
activities carried out in this year. High exposure of
46.09 million-man hours worked and 60.02 million
kilometers driven and other challenges i.e. planning
the schedule of projects due to phase-wise removal
of pandemic restrictions in our work environment.

Though the year 2022 remained challenging due
to the gradual opening of works at sites and the
frequency of visits by new workers and subcontract
vendors to the work locations. However, with
a vigilant proactive strategy and continued
concerted efforts taken by the organization through
awareness videos, posters, campaigns, and vigilant
monitoring of our day-to-day business activities,

@

we successfully ensured that workers resumed
their work safely and with the required controls in
place.

Sustainable and smart QHSE Performance
Indicators are set for 2023 to enable continued
improvement of our Business Processes.
Sustainable HSE performance and Compliance with
the new Occupational Health & Safety Management
International Standard 1ISO 45001:2018 during this
year will imbibe new confidence in our Business
Stakeholders.

Human Capital

Galfar is committed to developing its resources and
maintaining its Omanization targets. Galfar aims
to accomplish employee development through
transparent and harmonious human capital policies,
maintain a motivating work environment and retain
talent. The goal is to be seen as one of the leading
employers offering satisfying career opportunities
and an environment that thrives with dedication,
creativity and innovation.

Galfar continued its uncompromised commitment
to employment of nationals. In 2022, Galfar recruited
270+ Omanis. With more than 3400 nationals, Galfar
prides itself to be one of the largest employers of
national workforce in the private sector.

Galfar outlook for 2023

As a result of the announcement of numerous
infrastructure projects, Galfar is optimistic about
2023, as Oman has a large volume of work.
Expansion plans in the energy sector continue to
be very important to Galfar, who has a strong order
book. At the beginning of 2023, Galfar’s Order Book
was worth over RO 500 million.

We are actively involved in several sectors,
including Energy & Industrial, Infrastructure,
Civil & Environmental, as well as Operation and
Maintenance, and we are equipped to take on any
challenging work throughout the Sultanate. Galfar
is a trusted one-stop solution provider for our

versatility and extensive logistical network,
are tough for competitors to match. : €

Suitanate of Oman
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As a responsible private sector entity, Galfar will
continue to strive to increase the return from this
order book through the implementation of various
strategic objectives in the transformation strategy,
which will boost the business by securing new
contracts for each business unit and enhance its
financial status.

Risks

As part of the construction business in the region,
risks remain an integral part of our business. In
order to mitigate these risks, the company has
implemented a comprehensive risk management
system, which is being rolled out across all of
the company’s units. As a result, we will be able
to align the risk management initiative with our
operational and strategic objectives in a systematic
and structured way, facilitating the management of
uncertainty, minimizing threats and surprises, and
maximizing opportunities. Management leadership
team members are regularly involved in discussing
risks and mitigation strategies.

Galfar has a healthy confirmed order book and a
promising project pipeline for company’s business
sustainability. Our strengths continue to develop
which includes our vast resource base (people &
plant), our 50 years track record, our outstanding

technical capabilities, our wide sector diversification
etc.,

Our gratitude and commitment

We would like to express our thanks and particular
appreciation to the members of the Board of
Directors, the management and all the employees
of Galfar and its affiliated companies for their work
in 2022. With your immense personal commitment,
great loyalty and unwavering readiness to support
the changes implemented, you made a decisive
contribution in helping the Galfar group to conclude
fiscal year 2022 successfully in spite of the many
challenges presented.

Our expression and thanks are extended to the
Government of sultanate of Oman, shareholders,
customers, financial institutions and all business
partners for their consistent support and
encouragement to the Company.

We pledge our support to the various Government
initiatives and the Oman 2040 vision under the wise
leadership of His Majesty Sultan Haitham bin Tariq.

Dr. Hamoud Rashid Al Tobi

Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tu the Sharcholders of

Galfar Engineering and Contracting SA0G
PO Box 533

Postal Code 113

Sultanate of (Iman

Report on the Audit of the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the separare and consolidated financial statements of Galfar Engineenng and Contracting
SA0G (the “Parent Company™) and irs subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), which comprise the separate and
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the separate and consoldared
statement of comprehensive income, separate and consolidared staterment of changes in equiry and separate and
consolidared statement of cash flows for the vear then ended, and notes 1o the separare and consolidared financial
staternents, including 2 summary of significant accounnng policies,

[n our opinion, the sccompanying separate and consolidated financial statements present fairly, 1n all marerial
respects, the separate and consclidated financial positon of the Parent Company and the Group as at
31 December 2022, and their sepacate and consolidated bnancial performunce and their separate and
consolidared cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audir in sccordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (18As). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further desenibed in the Audior’s Respewsibilities for the <Lidit of the Sepearate and Consolidated
Finamdal Socterments secnion of our reporr, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Erhics Standards Board for Accountants” {aferwationad Code of Ethivs for Professiona sbammetints (imeleding Tnsermational
Tnddependence Srandprds) (TESBA Code), rogether with the ethical requirements thas are celevanr to our audit of the
separate and consolidated financial srarements in the Sultanare of Oman, and we have fulfilled our other erhical
responsibilines i accordance with these requirements and the TESBEA Code. We believe thar the audit evidence
we have obmined iz sufficient and appropriate to provide a basts for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key Audit Marers

ey audit marters are those mattecs that, inour profiessional judgment, were of most significance in our audir
of the separate and consolidared financial statements of the current vear. These nutters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We hive determined the matters described below 1o be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Kev audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Revenue recognition  on construction

contracts

Refer to acvonmting policies and Notes 27 and 41 to the | Ohur procedures included, among others:

sepanife ahiel mﬂm.&ﬂiﬂaf_ﬁm.uﬁrf shetfensents, o (ibraned an und._-rgmndjn_g of the project ENCCUTON

Revenue from conatruction contracts For the processes and relevant conrrols relating 10 the

year ended 31 Decemnber 2022 ampunts 1o RO a:_.‘q:uundnp, for custnm-:n.' tonren,
163,412 thousands, and as at that date, gross * For the revenue recognized throughout the year, we

contenct receivables amounts to RC) 57,662 tested the key controls, including l‘csuhﬁl reviews by
thousands and geoss contract work in progress management, for their operanng effectiveness and
amounts o RO 66,197 thousands. performed procedures to gan sufficient appropriate
audir evidence on the accuracy of the accounting for
For construction  contmacts,  the  Group customer  contracts  and  related  separate  and
recognises revenue over tme ((T) and measures consolidated fnancial statement captions;
the pl'ugﬂ:ii based f.:n the iﬂpﬂ.tl method b'- ® These [}“}ggdun:; included n:-_::;_hng signiﬁcm! new
Fﬂnsldtﬂ-ng propottion  of contract  costs contracts to understand the terms and conditions and
incurred for the '.l:_nd{ performed to the balance their impact on revenue recognition, We performed
sheet date, relatve to the esomared  toral I:r:qui.riacﬂ with management o understand  their
t'ur.-_casn.:d costs of the contracts upto the project sk assessments and inspeoted  mecting
complenion, minutes from project reviews performed by

management to idennfy relevant changes in their
assessments and estimates. We challenged these
estirmates and judgments made for over the time
projects including comparing  estimated  project
financials between reporting pedods and assessed the
historical accuracy of these estimates;

The recopnition of revenue and profit or loss
therefore depends upon estimates in relation to
the forecasts of totul costs of each contract. Cost
contingencies may also be included in these
estimates to fke account of specific provisions
arising within each contrace. These contingenc :
e E\'iﬂl'ﬂj by the Group on ;J !f:ba::: * Analysing the end of job forecasts on contracts
throughour the contract life and amounts are re- seiccied iWnd: chalbuging fhe extinares’ @ithin the

estimated, untl the outcome of the contract is forecasts by mns:r.h:rm:g the' amounte nJ.::-.:.!,i:.-
procured, the amounts sill o be procured, the site

known. : z 4

and ome related cost forecasts against programme
The revenue on contracts may also include and run rates, and any contngency held;
vanations, which fall under either the variable |* (¥ a sample basis, we reconciled revenue ro the
congideration . or  contmact  modification supporting  documentation, validated estmates of
requirements of [FRS 15 Rewnse from Contrss costs to complete, rested the mathemarical acouracy
with Chstamers’. These are recognised on o of caleulations and  the adequacy of project
contracl-by-conteacr basis  when  evidence accounnng. We also examined costs included within
supports that the contmct modification s conteact assets on a sample basis by venfying the
enforceable or when varable consideration is smounts back o source documentation and tested
highly probable thar a significant reversal in the their recoverabiliy through comparing the net
amount of revenue recognised will not occur. realizable values as per the agreements with estimared

corsts to complete; and
* Considered approprateness of the disclosures in the

separate and consolidated financial srarements n
accordiance with the relevant requirements of [FRSs,

The effecr of these matrers 1s thar, as part of our
risk assessment, we determaned  that conteact
revenue and other relared contract balances have
in estrion ncertainny.

\R.No. 1015133
P.0. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman




Abu Timam

GrantThornton

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matrer

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of contract receivables and work
in progress

Biefer ta awconuting podictes and Noter 9,00 and 41 to the
Seputiefe and .rﬂ:ﬂﬁrﬂ#ﬂf_ fimarnind sttenents,

Contrace  receivables  and  work-in progress
balances are repocted i the separate  wngd
consolidated statement of fnancial position at
ROY 57,662 thousands and RO 66,197 thousands,
respectvely, excluding the allowance for the
expected credit losses of ROY 5,100 thousands and
RCY 10,083 thousands, respecuvely, and are
significant to the Group 5 of 31 December 2022,
The cernfication of the conrract work in progress
and collectability of contract reecivables is # key
element of Group's working capital management.
These balances include certain claims rased by the
Group agunst cermamn customers manly relanng
to variations from the odginally agreed scope, and
changes in costs incurred due o extension of the
project completion tme. Given the judgment
tovolved in the cernfication of variauon orders
and collecrability  assessment  of  contract
receivables, and considering delayed payments
due to the present market conditions, impairment
of contact receivables and contract work in
progress was & key audic marter. The application
of judgment and the use of assumptions are
described in crincal accounting estimates and
judpments in Note 2.2 and Note 41 of the
separate and consolidated fnancial statements.
Specific - factors  considered by  management
included:

®  the age of the outstanding amounis;

» independent reports on the recoverabilivy
of caims;

®  results of consultanons with external
laweyers;
existence of disputes;
eecent hustorical payment patterns; and
expectanions of tuming of collectabiling
and any other available information
concerming.  the  credivworthiness  of
COUNTETPArTes.

Management uses this information to determine
whether a provision for impairment s réquired
for a specific transacnon for each customer's
balinee.

We evaluated management’s assumpnons and methods

applied in the calculanng the provision for impairment

af contract recesvables and work in progress by canying
out the following procedures, among others:

* We obrined contract  receivables  halance
confirmarions;

o e amlysed the aging of contract receivables and
WOrk N progress;

* We obtained a list of long outstanding recetvahbles
and assessed the recoverability of rthese through
incuiry with management and by abtaning sutficient
corroborative evidence w support the conclusions;

* Reviewed the appropriateness of the assumptions
used (funere and histoncal), the methodology and
policics applied 1o assess the expected credit losses
in respect of financial assets of the Group in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.
Reviewed the working of management for expected
credit losses; and

* Considered approprateness of the disclosures in the
separate and consolidared fnancial statements in
accordance with the relevant requirements of [FR3s.

\R.No. 1015133
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Other Informarion

Management is responsible for other informarion. The other informarion comprises the Chaeman’s Report,
Management Discussion and Analysis Report and Corporate Governance Reporr bur does not inchide the
separate and consolidated Bruncial staeawnts and our anditor's report thereon.

{lur opinion on the sepacate and consolidated Arancial starements does not cover the other informiation and we
do not express any furm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audir of the separate and consolidated financial statemenrs, our responsibility is to read
the ather information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is muatedally inconsistent with
the separate and consolidated financial statements or our knowledige obtained in the audit, or otherwise Appears
o be matenally misstated. [F based on the work we have pecformed on the orher information obained prior 1o
the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a materal misstatement of the other nformanon, we
are required to report thar fact. We have nothing 1o report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Separate and
Consolidated Financial Statcments

Managernent is responsible for the preparanon and faur presentation of the separate and consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, with the relevant disclosure requirements of the Capiral Market Authority
and with the upplicable provisions of the Commercial Companies Law of the Sultanare of Oman, 2019 and for
such intermal control as management determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of separare and
consolidared financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or ecror,

In preparing the separate and consolidated fnancial sratements, management i responstble for assessing the
Group's ability to conrinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounning unless management either intends to liquidare the Giroup or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so

Those charged with govemance are responsible for oversceing the Group's financial reporting process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obuin reasonable assurance shour whether the separate and consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from matertal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue in
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 4 high level of assurance, but is not 2
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As will always detect a marerial missrarement when it
exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered matenial i, individually o in the aggregare,
they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisinns of users taken on the basis of these
separate and consolidated financial srarerments.

As part of an audit in sccordance with [54s, we exercise professional judgment and nuainrain professional
skepticism theoughout the audie. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of materdal musstatement of the separate and consolidated fnancial statemens,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtiun
audit evidence that 1s sufficient and appropniare to provide a basis for our apinion. The rsk of not detecting
amaterial misstatemnent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud miy invalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrcpresentations, or the overnde of internal control,

\R.No. 1015133
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Abu Timam

GrantThornton

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
{continued)

*  Obtain an understanding of inrernal contmol relevant to the sudit in order to design audst procedures that
are appropriate in e circumstances, but aot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s intecnal control

*  Euvaluate the appropoateness of accountng policies used and the reasonabléness of accountng estimires
and celated disclosures pade by management.

*  Conclude on the appropoareness of management's use of the going concern basts of accounnng and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerminty exists relared to events or conditions thar
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability 1o contnue as a poig conceny 16 we conclude thar a
raberinl uncectinty exises, we are cequired to deaw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the separate and consolidared financial statements or; if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opiruon, {ur conclusions are based on the mudit evidence obrained up o the date of our auditor's repor.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue 25 a going concern,

®  Bwaluate rthe overall presenmnon, structore and contenr of the separate and consolidated fnancial
sratements, including the disclosures, and whether the separate and conzolidated Onancial sratements
represent the underlving transactions and evenss in @ manner thar achieves fair presentation.

*  (brain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the separate and consolidated financial statements, We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remuin solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicare with those charged with govermance regarding, among other marrers, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audir Andings, including any significanr deficiencies in infemal contral thar
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with o staement that we have comphed with relevant erhical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relanonships and other marters thar
may reasonably be thought o bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken o eliminate theeats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters eommunicated with those charged wath governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the sepuarare and consolidared Anancial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit maners. We descnbe these marters in our auditor's reporr unless liw or regularion
precludes public disclosure abour rhe marrer or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thar a
matter should not be communicared in owr report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected ro ourweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opiuon, the separare and consolidated fnancial statements of the Parenr Company and the Growp for
the year ended 31 December 2022 comply, in all material respecrs, wirh the relevant disclosure requirements of
the Commercial Company Law of rthe Sultinate of Oman, 2019 and disclosure requirements issued by the
Capiral Marker Authority.

J M

MNasser Al Mugheiry
Licence No, L1024337
ABU TIMAM

{Chartered Certified Acrowntantil

8 March 2023
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Statement of Financial Position _,H:_.
As at 31 December 2022 mlfqr

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
Notes 2022 2021 2022 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 22,250 22,130 24,933 25,544
Intangible assets 4 198 292 215 317
Right-of-use assets 5 3,270 2,519 6,197 4,289
Investment in subsidiaries 6 3,775 3,673 - -
Investment in associates 7 5,530 5,466 4,496 4,965
Investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income 125 125 145 145
Retentions receivables 10 11,551 12,417 11,551 12,417
46,699 46,622 47,537 47,677
Current assets
Inventories 8 12,601 10,009 13,785 11,521
Contract work in progress 9 56,114 42,112 57,686 43,723
Contract and trade receivables 10 68,872 88,085 73,793 93,575
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 11 18,534 14,117 13,230 10,775
Deposits with banks 12 3,842 4,899 4,240 5,387
Cash and bank balances 13 6,058 11,279 6,895 12,092
166,021 170,501 169,629 177,073
Total assets 212,720 217,123 217,166 224,750
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 14 29,065 29,065 29,065 29,065
Share premium 15 - - - -
Statutory reserve 16 927 464 1,514 1,051
Foreign currency translation reserve 17 - - (440) (306)
Accumulated losses (2,094) (6,259) (7,675) (8,516)
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent Company 27,898 23,270 22,464 21,294
Non-controlling interest - - 862 883
Total equity 27,898 23,270 23,326 22,177
Non-current liabilities
Term loans 19 5,932 11,528 5,968 11,561
Lease liabilities 20 979 489 2,449 1,335
Employees’ end of service benefits 24 11,917 11,965 12,300 12,365
Advance from customers 25 7,542 6,743 7,542 6,743
Deferred tax liability 26 - - 347 361
26,370 30,725 28,606 32,365
Current liabilities
Term loans 19 8,052 12,336 8,160 12,390
Lease liabilities 20 498 431 1,149 815
Short term loans 21 8,000 16,200 8,000 16,200
Bank borrowings 22 8,682 6,849 8,949 7,076
Trade and other payables 23 74,872 68,533 81,266 76,111
Accruals and other liabilities 25 58,248 57,439 57,585 56,210
Provision for taxation 26 100 1,340 125 1,406
158,452 163,128 165,234 170,208
Total liabilities 184,822 193,853 193,840 202,573
Total equity and liabilities 212,720 217,123 217,166 224,750
Net assets per share (RO) 35 0.096 0.080 0.077 0.073

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 March 2023 and were signed on its
behalf by:

Chairman Chief Finafpicial Offi¢er--
g C.R No. 1015133
P.O.Box 533

The report of the Auditor is set forth on page 30. P.C. 100, Muscat

Suitanate of Oman
@



Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
Notes 2022 2021 2022 2021
Contract revenue 27 163,412 174,020 163,949 175,141
Sales and services income 28 2,708 3,362 13,672 12,808
Total revenue 166,120 177,382 177,621 187,949
Cost of contracts and services 30 (157,403) (171,454) (170,583) (183,871)
Gross profit 8,717 5,928 7,038 4,078
Other income 29 1,932 5,114 2,284 5,316
General and administrative expenses 31 (6,369) (6,026) (7,659) (7,243)
Reversal of allowance for expected credit 9,10,
losses on receivables and other current 11,12
assets, net and 13 1,740 3,425 1,651 2,999
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiaries 6 - (250) - -
Finance costs 33 (2,584) (8,557) (2,756) (3,705)
Share of loss from associates 7 - - (402) (166)
Profit before tax 3,436 4,634 156 1,279
Tax credit/(expense) 26 1,192 - 1,127 (24)
Profit for the year 4,628 4,634 1,283 1,255
Attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company 4,628 4,634 1,304 1,279
Non-controlling interest - - (21) (24)
4,628 4,634 1,283 1,255
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Iltems that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation reserve on
remeasurement of foreign operations - - (134) 32
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,628 4,634 1,149 1,287
Earnings per share (RO) 34 0.016 0.016 0.004 0.004

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The report of the Auditor is set forth on page 30. [ OB o

P.C. 100, Muscat
@

Suitanate of Oman




Statement of Changes in Equity -

Parent Company

Giifar

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Statement of Cash Flows _,H:_.
For the year ended 31 December 2022 mlfqr

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
Notes 2022 2021 2022 2021

Operating activities
Profit before tax 3,436 4,634 156 1,279
Adjustments for:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 3 7,326 9,691 8,360 10,828
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 107 100 115 108
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 5 578 554 993 768
Provision for expected credit losses 1,465 6,466 1,555 6,892
Reversal for provision for expected credit losses (3,205) (9,891) (3,205) (9,891)
Finance costs, net 33 2,584 3,557 2,756 3,705
Share of loss from associates 7 - - 402 166
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (714) (470) (907) (587)
Impairment loss for investment in subsidiaries 6 - 250 - -
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 24 1,378 1,545 1,455 1,600
Working capital movements:

Inventories (2,592) 340 (2,264) 896
Contract, trade and other receivables 2,530 26,659 5,010 28,038
Trade and other payables, accruals and other

liabilities 7,130 (12,532) 6,794 (12,437)
Non-current operating assets/liabilities changes:

Retentions receivables 870 (1,368) 870 (1,368)
Advance from customers 799 1,213 799 1,213
Employees’ end of service benefits paid 24 (1,426) (2,520) (1,520) (2,542)
Income tax paid (48) - (168) 4
Net cash generated from operating activities 20,218 28,228 21,201 28,672
Investing activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment 3 (7,483) (1,104) (7,806) (1,564)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 751 610 964 734
Additions to intangible assets 4 (12) (52) (13) (53)
(Investment)/disposal in associates and subsidiaries (64) (134) 32
Deposits with banks 976 2, 025) 1,066 (2,404)
Net cash used in investing activities (5,832) (2,571) (5,923) (3,255)
Financing activities

Repayment of term loans (11,880) (12,614) (11,823) (12,918)
Proceeds from term loans 2,000 17,000 2,000 17,000
Repayment of short term loans (42,700) (83,352) (42,700) (33,352)
Proceeds from short term loans 34,500 21,656 34,500 21,656
Net movement in bank borrowings 2,356 (3,124) 2,356 (3,124)
Lease payments (857) (2,248) (1,650) (2,803)
Interest paid (2,584) (3,557) (2,756) (3,705)
Net cash used in financing activities (19,165) (16,239) (20,073) (17,246)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

equivalents (4,779) 9,418 (4,795) 8,171
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

the year 11,136 1,718 11,722

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 6,357 11,136 6,927

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The report of the Auditor is set forth on page 30. P.C. 100, Muscat

Suitanate of Oman
@




Notes to the financial statements
As at 31 December 2022

1. Activities

Galfar Engineering and Contracting SAOG (the “Parent Company”) is an Omani joint stock company
registered under the Commercial Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman, 2019 as amended and
listed on Muscat Securities Market.

The principal activities of Galfar Engineering and Contracting SAOG and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
are road, bridge and airport construction, oil and gas including EPC works, civil and mechanical
construction, public health engineering, electrical, HVAC, ready-mix concrete production and sale,
plumbing and maintenance contracts.

2. Significant accounting policies

(2.1) Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been presented separately for Parent Company on a standalone basis
and consolidated which comprise the results and balances of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”). These are collectively referred to as “the financial statements”.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost basis, except for investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income that have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements have been prep ared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the requirements of
the Commercial Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman, 2019 as amended and the Capital Market
Authority (CMA).

These financial statements have been presented in Rial Omani which is the functional and presentation
currency for the Parent Company and all values are rounded to nearest thousand (RO’000s) except
when otherwise indicated.

(2.2) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses.

Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving varying,
and possibly significant, degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from
management’s estimates resulting in future changes in estimated assets and liabilities.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

\R.No. 1015133
P.0. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman
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Notes to the financial statements _,H:_.

As at 31 December 2022 Gdlfqr

(2.3)

(2.4)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

)
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

C) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
)

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
continuity of normal activities and realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course
of business. The Parent Company and the Group have earned a gross profit of RO 8,717 thousand
and RO 7,038 thousand, respectively, and net profit of RO 4,628 thousand and RO 1,283 thousand
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022 and as of that date, the Parent Company and the
Group has accumulated losses position of RO 2,094 thousand and RO 7,675 thousand respectively.
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as a result of the following:

- During the year 2023, the Parent Company expects realisation of old receivables and estimates
that there is sufficient cash flow to continue the business without any disruption;

- The Parent Company has never defaulted in servicing its lenders and the Group is committed to
meeting all the loan repayment obligations as they fall due. The Parent Company continues to
have multiple avenues for raising both short term and long-term financing. Further, the Parent
Company regularly pays its employees and creditors;

- The Parent Company continues to build on its market position as one of the Oman’s largest
construction entities and having a strong order book at RO 517 million (2021: RO 404 million);

- The Board of Directors have taken necessary measures to strengthen the financial position of the
Group and also to improve the Group’s profitability in coming years. In addition to the initiatives
set out above, the Directors/management continue to look at various sources of funding£Gpgest >

and other long-term investment options to provide the working capital required for t / J:gi‘rlt\arsrs:

Non-essential capital expenditure has been frozen and initiatives to reduce corporafg sads

erheads 133
and improve cost control have been launched;

P.0. Box 533
m

P.C. 100, Muscat
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Notes to the financial statements
As at 31 December 2022

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(2.4) Going concern (continued)

- The Parent Company has prepared a detailed cash flow demonstrating how it will manage the
cash requirements in 2023. The inflows from the closed and ongoing projects are sufficient to
take care of the cash requirements of those projects till completion. However, the projected cash
flows are highly dependent on timely execution of ongoing projects, timely certification of billed
receivables and timely settlement of receivables from the clients, the majority of which are from
Government or Government related entities amounting to RO 40,239 thousand; and

- The Parent Company has created adequate provisions against certain long outstanding
receivables and is confident that the majority of the receivables will get realised in the year 2023
resulting in improving the bottom line and cash flow scenario.

The above coupled with the investors and market confidence restored by way of additional
projects being awarded to the Parent Company as of 31 December 2022 has allowed the
management to view the Parent Company / the Group as a going concern and is satisfied that
the Parent Company / the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. Therefore, these financial statements are continued to be prepared on a going concern
basis.

(2.5) New and revised standards or Interpretations New Standards adopted as at 1 January 2022

Some accounting pronouncements which have become effective from 1 January 2022 and have
therefore been adopted do not have a significant impact on the Group’s financial results or position.

(2.6) Standards, amendments and Interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet effective and
have not been adopted early by the Group

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, several new, but not yet effective, Standards
and amendments to existing Standards, and Interpretations have been published by the IASB or IFRIC.
None of these Standards or amendments to existing Standards have been adopted early by the Group
and no Interpretations have been issued that are applicable and need to be taken into consideration by
the Group at either reporting date.

Management anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first period beginning
on or after the effective date of the pronouncement. New Standards, amendments and Interpretations
not adopted in the current year have not been disclosed as they are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(2.7) Basis of consolidation

The financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2022. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the rejéya

P . [ C.R.No.1015133
activities of the investee); P.0. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
@

Suitanate of Oman



Notes to the financial statements _,H:_.
As at 31 December 2022 mlfqr

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(2.7) Basis of consolidation (continued)

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the statement of comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests.

All intracompany assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Whereas, the excess of the FV of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets over the cost of acquisition is recorded as income in statement of
comprehensive income as bargain purchase gain.

In the Parent Company’s standalone financial statements, the investments in subsidiaries are carried at
cost less impairment, if any.

List of subsidiaries are included in Note 6 to these financial statements.
(2.8) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid

“
[ CR No. 1015133
[-2]
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Notes to the financial statements
As at 31 December 2022

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(2.8) Transactions with non-controlling interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in statement of profit or loss.
The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions i.e., transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value
of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(2.9) Investments in associates

The Group’s investments in its associates are accounted for under the equity method of accounting.
In the Parent Company’s standalone financial statements, the investment in an associate is carried at
cost less impairment. An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which
is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the statement of financial position
at cost plus post- acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill
relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment. After application of the
equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize any additional impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s net investment in the associate. The statement of comprehensive income
reflects the share of the results of operations of the associate. Where there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this,
when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies which may exist.

(2.10) Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment held for the use of Group’s activities are recorded at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if
the recognition criteria of qualifying assets of IAS 23 are met. When significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation. Likewise, when a major inspection is perfor
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement }f. &

recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statgrpr#t No Jois1ss

of comprehensive income as incurred. Suranale ol Oman
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Notes to the financial statements _,H:_.
As at 31 December 2022 mlfqr

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.10) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases:

Buildings & camps 4 - 30 years
Plant & machinery 7 - 10 years
Motor vehicles & equipment 7 - 10 years
Furniture & equipment 6 years
Project equipment & tools 6 years

ltems costing less than RO 300 are expensed out in the year of purchase. The land is not depreciated
as it has an indefinite useful life.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial
year end. Where the carrying value of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. During the year, the Group revised the estimated
useful life of buildings that previously averaged to 15 years and were increased to 30 years. The effect
of these changes in estimates has resulted a decrease in depreciation expense by RO 672 thousand,
increase in profit after tax by RO 571 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2022.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset, calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

(2.11) Capital work-in-progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for
purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

(2.12) Intangible assets - Computer software:

Computer software costs (including under development) that are directly associated with identifiable
and unique software products and have probable economic benefits exceeding the costs beyond one
year are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include staff costs of the software development
team and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Computer software costs recognised as an

\R.No. 1015133
P.0. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman




Notes to the financial statements
As at 31 December 2022

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.12) Intangible assets - Computer software (continued)

The amortisation period and amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the intangible
assets.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

(2.13) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price
and all direct costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. Provision is made
where necessary for obsolete, slow moving and defective items.

(2.14) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group
makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or Groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The loss
arising on impairment of an asset is recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.14) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

At the time of assessing the impairment on its investments in associates, the Group determines, after
application of the equity method, whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss of
the Group’s investment in its associates. The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If this is the case the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the fair value of the associate and
the acquisition cost and recognises the amount in the statement of comprehensive income.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment in the Parent Company’s standalone
financial statements.

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For the concession business,
each of the concession arrangements is considered to be a CGU. The fair value less costs to sell
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions conducted at arm’s length for
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value-
in-use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the
budget for the next five years, or, in the case of concession arrangements, for the concession period
and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The
recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as
well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

(2.15) Financial instruments
(2.15) (a) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCl, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Group’s
business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in thg

&

place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group £g¥

YRACAYT o
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purchase or sell the asset.
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Notes to the financial statements
As at 31 December 2022

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.15) Financial instruments (continued)
(2.15) (a) Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

- Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

- Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired. The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include retentions
receivables, contract and trade receivables, bank balances, other receivables and deposits.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are
met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in OCl is recycled to profit or loss. The Group does not have any such instruments.

m
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.15) Financial instruments (continued)
(2.15) (a) Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not
subject to impairment assessment. The group has an investment in equity security classified at FVOCI.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The Group does not have any such
instruments.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“’pass-through”” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.15) Financial instruments (continued)
(2.15) (a) Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance for ECLs for all debt financial assets not designated
at FVTPL and FVOCI (equity instruments).

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics. The contract assets related to unbilled work in progress
and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical default rates, adjusted for current and forward- looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

The credit risk on a financial instrument is considered low, if the financial instrument has a low risk of
default, the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. An external
rating of ‘investment grade’ is an example of a financial instrument that may be considered as having
low credit risk. They should, however, be considered to have low credit risk from a market participant
perspective taking into account all of the terms and conditions of the financial instrument.

Exposure due to deposits at Banks (whether rated or not) are also considered very low on default
probability. However, the appropriate default probability adjustments are made to reflect industry
standard practices along with pragmatism. The rating of the respective banks and the corresponding
probability of default is considered for computation of expected credit losses.

credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrifpantalf Jio, 1015133

. . . . P.C. 100, M
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Suanate of Oman
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.15) Financial instruments (continued)
(2.15) (a) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 365 days or more;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

(2.15) (b) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, due to related parties, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and short-term borrowings.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium onacquisition andfees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or
loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Trade and other payables and due to related parties

Trade and other payables and due to related parties are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables and
due to related parties are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or le

the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-currenf]ia :
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Notes to the financial statements
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.15) (b) Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

(2.16) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(2.17) Term deposits

Term deposits are carried on the statement of financial position at their principal amount.

(2.18) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the cash flows
statement, the Group considers cash in hand, bank balances, bank overdraft and short term deposits
with a maturity of less than three months from the financial reporting date as cash and cash equivalents.
The Group included its bank overdrafts as part of cash and cash equivalents. This is because these bank
overdrafts are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

(2.19) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

a.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises the right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for any re-measurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received. [Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership / et
leased asset at the end of the lease term], the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciatgd®p Mrer e
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-f

\ S%R,No.1015133
assets are subject to impairment.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(2.19) Leases (continued) Group as a lessee (continued)

b. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in- substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities are increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., a change in future payments resulting from a change
in index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

c. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

(2.20) Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when:
The Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that

payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. :‘ C-R.No. 1015133
[-2]
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.20) Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation and the risks specific to the obligation.

(2.21) Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Rial Omani, which is also the functional currency of the
Parent Company.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies
are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate
of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the statement of comprehensive
income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.

As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of Group entities are translated into the functional
currency of the Group financial statements (the Rial Omani) at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting
date and its statements of comprehensive income is translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising on equity accounting of foreign subsidiary are taken directly to the
foreign currency translation reserve. Foreign currency translation reserve is recognised in equity under
cumulative changes in fair value. On disposal of the foreign operations, such exchange differences are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of the profit or loss on sale. A write down
of the carrying amount of a foreign operation does not constitute a disposal.

(2.22) Provision for Employees’ end of service benefits

Termination benefits for Omani employees are contributed in accordance with the terms of the Social
Securities Law.

Employees’ end of service benefits are accrued in accordance with the terms of employment of the
Group’s employees at the reporting date, having regard to the requirements of the applicable labour
laws of the countries in which the Group operates. Employee entitlements to annual leave and leave

passage are recognised when they accrue to employees and an accrual is made for the estimated
N - . . P L
liability arising as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date. These accyaals N
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current liability.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.23) Dividend on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are
approved by the Parent Company’s shareholders.

(2.24) Taxation

Taxation is provided for based on relevant tax laws of the respective countries in which the Group
operates. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on laws that have been enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused
tax assets and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax assets and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity
is recognised in equity and not in the statement of comprehensive income.

(2.25) Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured,
regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding discounts, rebates, customer returns and other sales taxes or duty. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(@) Contract revenue and revenue from sale of goods

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set
out in IFRS 15:

1. Identify the contracts with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement betw
more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteffaty

contract that must be met.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.25) Revenue (continued)

(a)
2.

Contract revenue and revenue from sale of goods (continued)

Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation at a point in time or
over time.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if any of the
following criteria is met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the

Group performs; or

- The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or

enhanced; or

- The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where none of the above conditions are not met, revenue is
recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied. The Group
is required to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance
obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time in order to determine the appropriate
method of recognising revenue. The Group has concluded that for majority of its arrangements,
it is either creating or enhancing an asset controlled by the customer or it is creating an asset
with no alternative use and has an enforceable right to payment for work completed. Therefore,
it meets the criteria to recognise revenue overtime and measure progress of its projects through
the cost to complete method (input method) as it best depicts the transfer of control of products
and services under each performance obligation.

For the operation and maintenance contracts, where the predefined service rendered to the
clients results in a steady flow of consistent fixed revenue periodically, the revenue is recognized
based on the measured Value of Work Done (Output Method) and for the service contracts where
the predefined service with fixed agreed rates exists and where variable service rendere
the clients are based on individual orders with agreed rates, revenue is measured based ofighe | =

measured Value of Work Done (Output Method). 5 CR No 101515

P.0. Box 533
@

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman



Notes to the financial statements _,H:_.
As at 31 December 2022 mlfqr

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(2.25) Revenue (continued)

(@) Contract revenue and revenue from sale of goods (continued)

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services
it creates a contract asset based on the amount of consideration earned by the performance.
Where the amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue
recognised this gives rise to a contract liability.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty. The Group assesses
its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or an
agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

Variations which are in the nature of extension of existing scope of work are accounted for
using cumulative catch-up adjustments to the cost to complete method of revenue recognition.
Variation orders which require addition of distinct goods and services to the scope at discounted
prices are accounted for prospectively and variation orders which require addition of distinct
goods and services to the scope at standalone selling prices are accounted for as new contracts
with the customers.

Claims are accounted for as variable consideration. They are included in contract revenue using
the expected value or most likely amount approach (whichever is more predictive of the amount
the entity expects to be entitled to receive) and it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the claim is subsequently resolved.

A loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the expected contract
costs exceed the total anticipated contract revenue.

The Group combines two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the same
customer and accounts for the contracts as a single contract if one or more of the following
criteria are:

- The two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the same customer
are negotiated as a package, with a single commercial objective;

- The amount of consideration to be paid in one contract depends on the price or performance
of the other contract; or

- The goods or services promised in the contracts (or some goods or services promised in
each of the contracts) are a single performance obligation.

If the above criteria are met, the arrangements are combined and accounted for as a single
arrangement for revenue recognition.

Pre-contract cost of obtaining a contract with a customer is recognised as an asset if those costs are
expected to be recovered.

Revenue is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income to the extent that it is hig
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

@
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(2.25) Revenue (continued)

(b) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate (EIR) applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights to receive payment has been
established.

(2.26) Contract costs

Contract costs include costs that relate directly to the specific contract and costs that are attributable
to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
specific contract comprise: site labour costs (including site supervision); costs of materials used in
construction; depreciation of equipment used on the contract; costs of design, and technical assistance
that is directly related to the contract.

The Group’s contracts are typically negotiated for the construction of a single asset or a Group of assets
which are closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology and function. In
certain circumstances, the percentage of completion method is applied to the separately identifiable
components of a single contract or to a Group of contracts together in order to reflect the substance
of a contract or a Group of contracts.

Contract costs are recognised as expenses by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract cost exceeds total
contract revenue the expected loss is recognised as expense immediately.

(2.27) Contract work in progress

Work in progress on long term contracts is calculated at cost plus attributable profit, to the extent
that this is reasonably certain after making provision for contingencies, less any losses foreseen in
bringing contracts to completion and less amounts received and receivable as progress payments.
These are disclosed as ‘Due from customers on contracts’. Cost for this purpose includes direct labour,
direct expenses and an appropriate allocation of overheads. For any contracts where receipts plus
receivables exceed the book value of work done, the excess is included as ‘Due to customers on
contracts’ in accounts payable and accruals. For impairment on contract work in progress, refer note
2.15(a).

(2.28) Directors’ remuneration

The Parent Company follows the Commercial Companies Law (as amended), and other latest relevant

to which they relate.

* C.R.No. 1015133
[-2]
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.29) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases its equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the Parent Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the Parent Company’s equity holders.

(2.30) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
management. The management is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance
of the operating segments.

(2.31) Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(2.32) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place

either:
. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s gb#tto:
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 4.2
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

@
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Notes to the financial statements
As at 31 December 2022

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2.33) Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level-1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level-2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

- Level-3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

The fair value of unquoted derivatives is determined by reference to the counter party’s valuation at the
year end.

\R.No. 1015133
P.0. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman
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Notes to the financial statements _,H:_.
As at 31 December 2022 JAlfar

3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The Parent Company has availed term loan from a local commercial bank against mortgage of its
land and buildings. Outstanding term loan amount is RO 4,083 (2021: RO 5,083) thousand. Vehicles
and equipment with an insurance value of RO 49,706 (2021: RO 58,171) thousand have been jointly
registered with banks / finance companies to obtain term loans.

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
allocated as follows:
Cost of contract and services (Note 30) 7,089 8,803 8,071 9,910
General and administrative expenses (Note 31) 237 888 289 918
7,326 9,691 8,360 10,828
4. Intangible assets
Costs
Balance at beginning of the year 3,266 3,214 3,380 3,327
Additions during the year 12 52 13 53
Balance at end of the year 3,279 3,266 3,393 3,380
Amortisation
Balance at beginning of the year 2,974 2,874 3,063 2,955
Charge for the year (Note 31) 107 100 115 108
Balance at end of the year 3,081 2,974 3,178 3,063
Net book value 198 292 215 317

Intangible assets comprise of computer software RO 198 (2021: RO 292) thousand in Parent Company
and computer software RO 215 (2021: RO 317) thousand in consolidated.

5. Right-of-use assets

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, building, vehicles and other equipment used
in its operations. Leases of land and building generally have lease terms between 2 to 25 years, while
vehicles and other equipment generally have lease terms between 1 to 5 years.

The Group also has certain leases of vehicles and machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less

lease’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

@
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Notes to the financial statements
As at 31 December 2022

5. Right-of-use assets (continued)

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021
Costs
Balance at beginning of the year 4,476 2,204 6,784 3,798
Additions during the year 1,329 2,272 2,902 2,986
Balance at end of the year 5,805 4,476 9,686 6,784
Depreciation
Balance at beginning of the year 1,957 1,403 2,496 1,727
Charge for the year (Note 30) 578 554 993 768
Balance at end of the year 2,535 1,957 3,489 2,495
3,270 2,519 6,197 4,289

With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is
reflected in the statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. Variable lease
payments which do not depend on an index or a rate (such as lease payments based on a percentage
of Group’s sales) are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and right-of-use assets.

6. Investment in subsidiaries

Galfar Aspire Readymix SPC 3,000 2,898 - -
Al Khalij Heavy Equipment & Engineering LLC 600 600 - -
Aspire Projects & Services SPC 250 250 - -
Galfar Mott MacDonald LLC 163 163 - -
Galfar Training Institute LLC 149 149 - -
Galfar Oman Engg. & Contg. S.P.C., Kuwait 12 12 - -

4,174 4,072 - -
Provision for impaired investments (399) (399) - -

3,775 3,673 - -

During the year 2022, the Parent Company has created RO Nil (2021: RO 250) thousand provision
related to Aspire Projects & Services SPC.

Information about activities and incorporation of subsidiaries are summarised below:

Name of the subsidiaries Principal activity Place and year of
incorporation

Galfar Aspire Readymix SPC Manufacturing Oman 2012

Aspire Projects & Services SPC Construction Oman

Galfar Training Institute LLC Training Oman

Al Khalij Heavy Equipment & Engineering LLC Hiring Equipment Oman

Galfar Mott MacDonald LLC EPC consultancy Oman

Galfar Oman General Contracting for Building Company Construction Kuwait g:ga 100, Muscat

m



Notes to the financial statements
As at 31 December 2022

_bils

JAlfar

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Information on shareholding in subsidiaries are summarised below:

Name of the subsidiaries

Galfar Aspire Readymix SPC

Aspire Projects & Services SPC

Galfar Training Institute LLC

Al Khalij Heavy Equipment & Engineering LLC
Galfar Mott MacDonald LLC

Galfar Oman General Contracting for Building Company

Investment in associates

Shares acquired

by Parent Company
100% 97%
100% 100%
99% 99%
52% 52%
65% 65%
100% 100%

Shares acquired

by the Group
100% 97%
100% 100%
100% 100%
52% 52%
65% 65%
100% 100%

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company

Consolidated

2022 2021 2022 2021
Galfar Engineering & Contracting Kuwait KSC (GEC) 7,030 6,966 4,496 4,965
International Water Treatment LLC (IWT) - 4,144 - -
7,030 11,110 4,496 4,965
Provision for impairment in associates (1,500) (5,644) - -
5,530 5,466 4,496 4,965

Provision for impairment in associates comprise:

(i) RO Nil (2021: RO 4,144) thousand against investment in IWT.

(i) RO 1,500 (2021: RO 1,500) thousand against investment in GEC.

Movement on the provision for impairment in investments is as follows:

At the beginning of the year
Written off during the year
At the end of the year

Information on shareholding in associates is summarised below:

Galfar Engineering & Contracting Kuwait KSC (j)
International Water Treatment LLC (ii)

Galfar Engineering & Contracting Kuwait KSC (j)
International Water Treatment LLC (IWT) (ii)

@

5,644 5,644
(4,144) -
1,500 5,644
Principal

activity

Construction
Construction

Shares acquired by
Parent Company
26% 26%
30% 30%

Place and year of

acquisition
Kuwait 2010
Oman 2013

b Groun., N
26% (| *( °F2BIAN"

P.C. 100, Muscat
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7. Investment in associates (continued)

(i) The Parent Company holds 26% shareholding in this company (earlier known as ‘Shaheen Al
Ghanim Contracting Co. KSC’). The company is engaged in construction activities.

(if) The Parent Company has 30% shareholding in this company in partnership with VA Tech Wabag
Ltd. of India and Cadagua SA of Spain with 32.5% and 37.5% shareholding respectively.
This company has completed «Ghubrah independent water desalination» project. The project
maintenance period was completed by end of 2020.

The company was liquidated in 2022 and the outstanding investments have been fully written off
against the brought forward provision of RO 4,144.

Share of loss of the Group for the year comprises of loss from GEC Kuwait RO 402 (2021: loss RO 166)
thousand.

The summarised financial information of major associate company is as stated below:

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021
GEC, Kuwait
Statement of financial position:
Current assets 15,131 17,273
Non-current assets 12,246 12,720
Current liabilities (5,212) (6,538)
Non-current liabilities (4,873) (4,362)
Net assets 17,292 19,093
Reconciliation of carrying amount:
Net assets at the beginning of the year 19,093 19,606
Loss for the year (1,544) (640)
Currency translation impact (257) 127
Net assets at the end of the year 17,292 19,093
Group’s share in % 26% 26%
Carrying amount 4,496 4,965
Statement of comprehensive income:
Revenue 3,411
Costs of revenue (4,955)
Loss before tax (1,544)
Tax - TR No. 1015133
Loss after tax (1,544) PC. 100 vese

@
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8. Inventories
Amount in RO ‘000s
Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021
Materials and consumables 12,856 10,432 14,474 12,383
Allowance for slow-moving inventories (255) (423) (689) (862)

12,601 10,009 13,785 11,521

Movement in allowance for slow-moving
inventories is as follows:

At the beginning of the year 423 421 862 496
Charge for the year 83 99 78 503
Written back during the year (251) 97) (251) 97)
Written off during the year - - - (40)
At the end of the year 255 423 689 862

9. Contract work in progress

Work-in-progress on long term contracts at cost

plus attributable profit considered as receivables 66,197 62,384 68,809 65,035

Allowance for expected credit losses (10,083) (20,272) (11,123) (21,312)
56,114 42,112 57,686 43,723

Movement on the allowance for expected credit losses against contract work in progress is as follows:

At the beginning of the year 20,272 23,320 21,312 24,090
Charge for the year 290 4,674 290 4,944
Written back during the year (1,497) (5,048) (1,497) (5,048)
Written off during the year (8,982) (2,674) (8,982) (2,674)
At the end of the year 10,083 20,272 11,123 21,312

Due from customers for construction contracts:

Revenue recognised at cost plus attributable profit 1,057,308 1,013,960 1,057,308 1,013,960
Less: Progress billings 991,111 951,576 988,499 948,925
66,197 62,384 68,809 65,035

Due to customers for construction contracts:

Amounts due to customers under construction
contracts recorded as billings in excess of work

done (Note 25) 6,690 3,738 6,690
Progress claims received and receivable 168,331 291,514 168,331
Less: Revenue recognised at cost plus attributable

profit 161,641 287,776 161,641

6,690 3,738 6,690 \&\ >3 78¢ 2
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10. Contract and trade receivables

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company

Consolidated

2022 2021 2022 2021
Contract billed receivables 57,662 84,303 58,430 85,158
Trade receivables 1,762 1,918 6,921 6,553
Retentions receivables - current 14,548 17,522 14,670 18,560
73,972 103,743 80,021 110,271
Allowance for expected credit losses (5,100) (15,658) (6,228) (16,696)
68,872 88,085 73,793 93,575

Retentions receivables
Non-current retention receivables (gross amount) 11,706 12,576 11,706 12,576
Allowance for expected credit losses (155) (159) (155) (159)
Non-current portion (net of provisions) 11,551 12,417 11,551 12,417

The net carrying value of contract and trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation
of fair value. All of the Group’s contract and trade receivables have been reviewed for indicators of

impairment.

Movement on the allowance for expected credit losses against contract and trade receivables including

current retentions is as follows:

At the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Written back during the year

Written off during the year

At the end of the year

15,658 18,926 16,696 19,808
669 1,757 759 1,913
(1,686) (4,790) (1,686) (4,790)
(9,541) (234) (9,541) (234)
5,100 15,658 6,228 16,696

Movement on the allowance for expected credit losses against non-current retentions is as follows:

At the beginning of the year
Charge for the year

Written back during the year

159

(4)

148
11

159

(4)

At the end of the year

155

159

155

148

\R.No. 1015133
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11. Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated

2022 2021 2022 2021
Advance on sub-contracts and supplies 5,022 1,684 5,627 1,854
Advances to employees 212 93 212 93
Prepaid expenses 3,838 3,203 3,948 3,212
Due from related parties - others (Note 36) 11,274 10,886 5,342 7,369
Insurance claims receivable - 2 - 2
Deposits 670 243 670 243
Other receivables - - 71 54

21,016 16,111 15,770 12,827

Allowance for expected credit losses against due (2,477) (1,991) (2,535) (2,049)
from related parties

Provision for others (5) (3) (5) (3)
18,534 14,117 13,230 10,775

Movement on the allowance for expected credit
losses against due from related parties and others
are as follows:

At the beginning of the year 1,994 2,040 2,052 2,098
Charge for the year 506 7 506 7
Written back during the year (18) (53) (18) (53)
At the end of the year 2,482 1,994 2,540 2,052

12. Deposits with banks

Term deposits (net of allowance for expected 3,842 4,899 3,842 4,899

credit losses)

Margin deposits - - 398 488
3,842 4,899 4,240 5,387

The term deposits are kept for a period more than three months from the date of placement.

Movement of expected credit losses on deposits with banks is as follows:

At the beginning of the year 5 3
Charge for the year - 2 \
At the end of the year 5 5 y CR ro B\

PO Box 533
P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman
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13. Cash and bank balances

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021
Cash in hand 110 161 132 168
Bank balances with current accounts (net of
allowance for expected credit losses) 5,948 11,118 6,763 11,924
6,058 11,279 6,895 12,092

There are no restrictions on bank balances at the time of approval of the financial statements.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented as follows:

Cash and bank balances 6,076 11,297 6,913 12,110

Deposits with banks (within 3 months maturity)

(Note 12) 975 1,056 975 1,056

Bank overdrafts (Note 22) (694) (1,217) (961) (1,444)
6,357 11,136 6,927 11,722

Movement of expected credit losses on bank balances are as follows:

At the beginning of the year 18 3 18 3
Charge for the year - 15 - 15
At the end of the year 18 18 18 18

14. Share capital

Authorised:

500,000,000 (2021: 500,000,000) ordinary shares

of par value RO 0.100 (2021: RO 0.100) each 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid:

Balance at beginning of the year 29,065 41,522 29,065 41,522
Reduction during the year - (12,457) - (12,457)
Balance at end of the year 29,065 29,065 29,065 29,065

The issued and fully paid share capital comprises of 290,650,946 (2021: 290,650,946) shares having a
par value of RO 0.100 (2021: RO 0.100) each. Pursuant to the terms of its IPO, the share capital of the
Parent Company has been divided into two classes comprising of 202,986,446 (2021: 202,986,446)
ordinary shares and 87,664,500 (2021: 87,664,500) preferential voting rights shares. The preferential
voting rights shares are held by the promoting shareholders and carry two votes at all general meetings
while otherwise ranking pari-passu with ordinary shares in all rights including the receipt of dividend.

Pursuant to the Capital Market Regulations, Muscat Security Exchange Internal regulations and as

of the accumulated losses by an amount of OMR 12,457 thousand. The number of shares has g'elc'igﬁoa'gféggw

P.C. 100, Muscat

reduced from 415,215,637 to 290,650,946 shares. Suftanate of Oman
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15. Share premium

Pursuant to the Capital Market Regulations, Muscat Securities Exchange Internal regulations and as
approved by the Shareholders in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 1 June 2021, the entire
share premium of OMR 18,337 thousand of the Parent Company has been utilized to extinguish part of
the accumulated losses.

16. Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Commercial Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman, 2019, annual
appropriations of 10% of the profit for the year are made to this reserve until the accumulated balance
of the reserve is equal to one-third of the value of the Group’s paid-up share capital. This reserve is not
available for distribution to the Shareholders.

Pursuant to the Capital Market Regulations, Muscat Securities Exchange Internal regulations and
as approved by the Shareholders in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 1 June 2021, the
legal reserve of OMR 13,840 thousand of the Parent Company was utilized to extinguish part of the
accumulated losses in the year 2021. During the year, RO 463 thousand has been transferred to
statutory reserve (2021: RO 464 thousand).

17. Foreign currency translation reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve represents impact of translation of associate company’s (GEC
Kuwait) financial statements figures in foreign currency to functional currency of the Parent Company
as required under IAS 21.

18. Dividend
No dividend was proposed or paid in 2022 (2021: RO Nil).

19. Term loans
Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021
Term loans:
- from banks 11,327 22,083 11,327 22,170
- finance companies 2,657 1,781 2,801 1,781

13,984 23,864 14,128 23,951

Current portion:

- from banks 7,269 11,264

- finance companies 783 1,072
8,052 12,336

Non-current portion:
- from banks 4,058 10,819

YPACAYT o

- finance companies 1,874 709 S/ cr %09:-3%53 ‘

5,932 11,528
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Notes to the financial statements
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19. Term loans

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021

The term loans are repayable as follows:
Within one year 8,052 12,336 8,160 12,390
In the second year 2,604 3,146 2,640 3,179
From third year onwards 3,328 8,382 3,328 8,382

13,984 23,864 14,128 23,951

The term loans are stated at amortised cost and amounts repayable within the next twelve months have
been shown as a current liability. The term loans from banks are secured against the assignment of
contract receivables and/or joint registration of vehicle/equipment/land mortgage. The term loans from
finance companies are secured against the jointly registered vehicle/equipment.

20. Lease liabilities

At the beginning of the year 920 846 2,150 1,834
Additions during the year 1,329 2,272 2,902 2,986
Finance cost 85 50 196 133
Payments (857) (2,248) (1,650) (2,803)
Balance at the end of the year 1,477 920 3,598 2,150
Current portion 498 431 1,149 815
Non-current portion 979 489 2,449 1,335

1,477 920 3,598 2,150

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts together with the
present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows:

Within one year 574 481 1,352 1,002
After one year but not more than five years 920 486 2,588 1,462
After five years 184 55 184 55
Total minimum lease payments 1,678 1,022 4,124 2,519
Amount representing finance charges (201) (102) (526) (369)
Present value of minimum lease payments 1,477 920 3,598 2,150

21. Short term loans

- from banks 8,000 16,200 8,000 16,

Short term loans from banks are repayable in one year and are secured against the contract assignyyi AAvets
and/or joint registration of vehicle/equipment. PO, Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
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22. Bank borrowings
Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021
Bank overdrafts 694 1,217 961 1,444
Loan against trust receipts 5,760 3,827 5,760 3,827
Bills discounted 2,228 1,805 2,228 1,805
8,682 6,849 8,949 7,076

Bank borrowings are repayable on demand or within one year. Bank borrowings are secured against
the assignment of contract receivables.

23. Trade and other payables

Trade payables 36,868 34,291 43,262 41,784
Provision for purchases and sub-contracts 38,004 34,242 38,004 34,327
74,872 68,533 81,266 76,111
All amounts are short-term. The carrying values of trade and other payables are considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair values.

24. Employees’ end of service benefits

Balance at beginning of the year 11,965 12,940 12,365 13,307
Charge for the year (Note 32) 1,378 1,545 1,455 1,600
Paid during the year (1,426) (2,520) (1,520) (2,542)
Balance at end of the year 11,917 11,965 12,300 12,365

25. Accruals and other liabilities

Provision for employees’ leave pay and passage 4,674 5,611 4,674 5,682
Advance from customers - current 27,335 22,009 27,335 22,051
Due to customers for construction contracts (Note 9) 6,690 3,738 6,690 3,738
Provision for future loss on contracts 1,620 2,706 1,620 2,706
Retentions on sub-contracts 4,209 5,035 3,331 5,075
Accrued expenses 6,051 6,378 7,084 7,272
Due to related parties (Note 36) 2,273 4,896 1,263 2,388
Statutory dues payable 4,371 6,101 4,406 6,127
Other payables 1,025 965 1,182 1,171

58,248 57,439 57,585 56,210

Advance from customers

Non-current portion 7,542 6,743 7,542

Current portion 27,335 22,009 27,335

Advance from customers 34,877 28,752 34,877

Advances from customers are secured by bank guarantees. IRTIFCIIAN
Advances from customers which can be adjusted against the estimated amounts to be bill :, nﬁa%o?éif
months are considered as current advances. Sultanate of Oman
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Notes to the financial statements
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26. Taxation

Income tax is provided for Parent Company and Omani subsidiaries as per the provisions of the law of
income tax on companies in Oman at the rate of 15% of result after adjusting disallowable items.

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021

Income tax expense
Tax (credit)/charge - Prior year (1,192) - (1,113) 26
Deferred tax charge/(credit) for the year - - (14) (2)
(1,192) - (1,127) 24

Provision for taxation

The Parent Company’s income tax assessment up to the year 2018 has been completed by the
tax authority. The income tax assessments of the subsidiaries are at various stages of completion.
The management believes that the amount of additional taxes, if any, that may become payable on
fainalisation of the unassessed tax years would not be material to the Group’s financial position. The
movement of tax provision is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year 1,340 1,340 1,406 1,428
Tax (credit)/charge (1,192) - (1,113) 26
Tax adjustment/paid (48) - (168) (48)
Balance at end of the year 100 1,340 125 1,406

Deferred tax liability

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the asset/liability method
using a principal tax rate as per tax law of the respective country.

Balance at beginning of the year - - 361 363
Tax charge - - (14) @
Balance at end of the year - - 347 361

27. Contract revenue

(@) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Parent Company - 2022
Particulars Construction Total

Revenue recognised over time 163,412 163,412

Parent Company - 2021
Particulars Construction

Revenue recognised over time 174,020 HPQ, PO, Boxs3
G , Muscat

ﬂ
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27. Contract revenue
Amount in RO ‘000s
Consolidated - 2022

Particulars Construction Other Total
Revenue recognised over time 163,412 537 163,949

Consolidated - 2021
Particulars Construction Other Total
Revenue recognised over time 174,020 1,121 175,141

(b)  Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Parent Company and the Group have recognized the following assets and liabilities related
to contracts with customers:

Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021
Contract receivables (Note 10) 57,662 84,303 58,430 85,158

Current contract asset relating to project 66,197 62,384 68,809 65,035
revenue (receivable) (Note 9)

Allowance for expected credit losses (Note (15,183) (35,930) (17,351) (38,008)
9&10)

Total contract assets 108,676 110,757 109,888 112,185

Contract liabilities relating to project 34,877 28,752 34,877 28,794
revenue (unearned, advance) (Note 25)

Total current contract liabilities 34,877 28,752 34,877 28,794

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for work completed but
not billed at the reporting date on construction projects.

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for
the construction projects.

28. Sales and services income

Sales and services - recognised at a point in time 2,696 3,319 11,796
Hiring services - recognised at a point in time 12 43 1,876
2,708 3362 13,672 [l&/12:808

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman
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29. Other income

31.

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company

Consolidated

ftanate of Oman

2022 2021 2022 2021
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 714 470 907 587
Miscellaneous income 1,218 4,644 1,379 4,729

1,932 5,114 2,284 5,316

30. Cost of contracts and services
Materials 28,537 23,673 35,531 30,640
Manpower costs (Note 32) 67,621 72,229 68,958 73,453
Sub-contracting costs 21,719 38,482 21,620 38,044
Plant and equipment repair and maintenance expenses 7,751 6,135 8,767 7,079
Plant and equipment hiring costs 2,970 3,665 3,401 4,064
Fuel expenses 11,620 10,652 12,748 11,474
Training expenses 224 118 224 118
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (Note 5) 578 554 993 768
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 3) 7,089 8,803 8,071 9,910
General and administrative expenses (Note 31) 9,294 7,143 10,270 8,321
157,403 171,454 170,583 183,871
General and administrative expenses
Manpower costs (Note 32) 3,923 4,082 5,736 6,017
Sub-contract expenses 282 27 282 27
Rent 364 461 398 538
Electricity and water charges 2,692 2,687 2,814 2,802
Professional, legal and client deductions 2,362 440 2,419 454
Insurance charges 2,343 1,938 2,395 1,986
Bank guarantee and other charges 1,241 945 1,245 951
Communication expenses 270 291 302 320
Repairs and maintenance - others 380 330 392 347
Traveling expenses 139 120 145 125
Printing and stationery expenses 176 133 184 142
Business promotion expenses 15 4 15 5
Tender fees 64 55 64 55
Directors’ sitting fee (Note 36) 97 58 107 58
Corporate social responsibility expenses 27 1 27 1
Other general expenditure 944 609 1,000 710
Depreciation and amortisation expenses (Notes 3
and 4) 344 988 404 1,026
15,663 13,169 17,929 15, -ﬂs“‘&%

Less: Pertaining to cost of contracts and services WY VST i, %
(Note 30) 9,294 7,143 10,270 K ‘b.ggoa.;:);ggaa -

6,369 6,026 7,659 (24 FC. 100 Muscat g

' o
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32. Manpower costs

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated
2022 2021 2022 2021
Salary and wages 62,387 64,665 65,171 67,429
Employees’ end of service benefits (Note 24) 1,378 1,545 1,455 1,600
Camp and catering expenses 7,004 8,369 7,004 8,369
Hired salary and wages 197 1,335 197 1,335
Other expenses 536 397 825 737
Staff incentives 42 - 42 -
71,544 76,311 74,694 79,470
Less: Pertaining to cost of contracts and services 67,621 72,229 68,958 73,453
(Note 30)
Pertaining to general and administration expenses 3,923 4,082 5,736 6,017
(Note 31)
33. Finance costs
Interest expense 2,499 3,507 2,560 3,572
Interest on lease liabilities 85 50 196 133
2,584 3,557 2,756 3,705

34. Earning per share

The earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earnings for the year attributable to the owners
of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. The
Parent Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue at the year end, thus, the
diluted earning per share is identical to the basic earning per share.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the 4,628 4,634 1,304 1,279
Parent Company:

Number of shares in ‘000 (Note 14) 290,650 290,650 290,650 290,650
Basic and diluted earning per share for the year 0.016 0.016 0.004 0.004

35. Net assets per share

Net assets per share is calculated by dividing the equity attributable to Shareholders of the Parent
Company at the reporting date by the number of shares outstanding as follows:

Net assets 27,898 23,270 22,464
Number of shares in ‘000 (Note 14) 290,650 290,650 290,650 //«;290,65 )
Net assets per share (RO) 0.096 0.080 0.077 E CR;

BoX
P.C. 100, Muscat
ﬂ
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36.

Related parties transactions and balances

Related parties comprise of subsidiaries, associated companies, major Shareholders, Directors and
key management personnel of the Group, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by such parties.

The Group maintains balances with these related parties which arise in the normal course of business
from commercial transactions, and are entered into at terms and conditions which are approved by the
management/Audit Committee.

The following is a summary of significant transactions with related parties which are included in the
financial statements:
Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated

2022 2021 2022 2021
Contract income
- with other related parties - 18 - 18
Sales and services -
- with subsidiaries 1,413 1,343 1 -
- with other related parties 6 898 828 1,578
Purchase of goods and services -
- with subsidiaries 2,607 5,398 - -
- with other related parties 68 1,553 138 1,553
Directors’ sitting fees 97 58 97 58

Balances of related parties recognised and disclosed in notes 11 and 25 respectively are as follows:

Due from subsidiaries and associated companies 6,939 4,774 1,007 1,257
Due from other related parties 4,335 6,112 4,335 6,112
Allowance for expected credit losses against due
from related parties (2,477) (1,991) (2,535) (2,049)
8,797 8,895 2,807 5,320
Due to Shareholders 10 10 10 10
Due to subsidiaries and associated companies 1,978 3,632 938 1,020
Due to other related parties 285 1,354 315 1,358
2,273 4,896 1,263 2,388

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled. During the year, RO 506 (2021: RO 7)
thousasnd has been recognised towards expected credit losses pertaining to related parties.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether
executive or otherwise).

The remuneration of key management personnel is as follows:

Salaries 689 612

Employees’ end of service benefits 24 24

Directors’ sitting fees (Note 31) 97 58 [[ B8 2 o 1ot
810 694
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37. Commitments and contingencies
Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company Consolidated

2022 2021 2022 2021
Bonds and guarantees 128,788 72,370 128,991 72,622
Letter of credit 25,166 13,028 25,185 13,138
Corporate guarantees 3,000 4,118 3,000 4,118
Capital commitments 1,807 1,075 1,807 1,075
Legal cases 718 722 718 722

159,479 91,313 159,701 91,675

The Parent Company has provided corporate guarantees for subsidiaries and associates and does not
anticipate any material liability to arise from these guarantees.

37.1 Legal cases

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries, in common with the significant majority of contractors, are
subject to litigation in the normal course of business. The Parent Company and its subsidiaries, based
on independent legal advice, do not believe that the outcome of these court cases will have a material
impact on the Group’s income or financial position.

37.2 Penalties

Penalties amounting to RO 5,301 (2021: RO 2,044) thousand have been levied on the Parent Company.
Though the penalties are countered by the extension of time claims from the Parent Company, cases
are under various stages of negotiations/arbitration and expected to be settled in due course, moreover
the same has been recorded in the books of account.

Further imposable penalties on account of expected completion delays amounting to RO 2,147 (2021:
RO 6,993) thousand on certain projects are not considered in the books of the Parent Company as the
management believes that the delay in these projects are majorly due to the delay from the customer’s
side and based on their recent discussions with these customers these penalties are not expected to
be levied on the Company.

38. Operating segments

Segmental information is presented in respect of the Group’s operating segments. Operating segment
is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure. Segment results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis.

The Group business is divided in four segments - construction, manufacturing, hiring of equipment and

plumbing and maintenance contracts. The other activities are hiring out of cranes, eq
other vehicles and training of drivers, operators, manufacturing of readymix concrete and T

@
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39.

Financial instruments and related risk management

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finances for the Group’s operations. The Group’s
financial assets include contract and trade receivables, and cash and bank and short-term deposits
that arrive directly from its operations.

The Group’s activities expose it to various financial risks, primarily being, market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk, and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management is
carried out internally in accordance with the policies approved by the Board of Directors.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings, deposits, investments at fair value through comprehensive income.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group does not hold any financial asssets or financial liabilities subject
to variable interest rate. Therefore, the Group is not exposed to any interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The management has set up a policy to
require the Group to manage its foreign exchange risk against their functional currency. The Group
operates in international markets and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar, Euros, Pound sterling and all GCC currencies. As
the exchange rate of the Rial Omani is pegged against most of the currencies, the Group is not subject
to any significant currency risk.

Equity price risk
The Group does not hold any quoted investment.
Credit risk

Credit risk primarily arises from credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and
committed transactions. The Group has a credit policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. The Group seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to banks by only dealing with repu
banks and with respect to customers by setting credit limits for individual customers and i

@

outstanding receivables.
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39. Financial instruments and related risk management (continued)

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company

Consolidated

2022 2021 2022 2021
Contract work in progress, contract and trade 125,621 148,605 134,160 156,746
receivables
Retentions receivables 26,099 29,939 26,221 30,977
Other receivables 11,944 11,131 6,083 7,668
Deposits with banks 3,847 4,904 4,250 5,397
Cash and bank balances 6,076 11,297 6,931 12,128
173,587 205,876 177,645 212,916

The exposure to credit risk for contract billed receivables, trade receivables and work in progress at the

reporting date by type of customer was:

Government customers
Petroleum Development Oman

Other private customers

73,228 98,302 73,228 98,302
19,190 21,912 19,190 21,912
33,203 28,391 41,742 36,532
125,621 148,605 134,160 156,746

The Group has established credit policies and procedures that are considered appropriate for the
Parent Company and its subsidiaries. The Group’s business is conducted mainly by participating in
tenders/bids. On acceptance of a tender/bid it enters into a detailed contract with the customer. This
contract specifies the payment and performance terms as well as the credit terms. Also refer to note 41
for key sources of estimation of uncertainty for the impairment of contract work in progress, contract

and trade receivables.

The age of contract work in progress, contract and trade receivables at the reporting date was:

Not past due

Past due 1- 180 days
Past due 181 - 365 days
More than 365 days

28,461 16,580 28,465
60,877 60,564 66,036
16,775 14,250 18,188
19,508 57,211 21,471
125,621 148,605 134,160
(15,183)  (35,930)  (17,351)

Allowance for expected credit loss

@
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39.

Financial instruments and related risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the nature of the underlying business
through the Group maintains adequate bank balances and credit facilities to fund its operations.
Management monitors the forecast of the Group’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows.
The Group is currently financed from shareholder’s equity and bank borrowings. The table below
analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Amount in RO ‘000s

Parent Company

Consolidated

2022 2021 2022 2021
The following are the financial liabilities:
Term loans 13,984 23,864 14,128 23,951
Short term loans 8,000 16,200 8,000 16,200
Bank borrowings 8,682 6,849 8,949 7,076
Trade and other payables 133,120 125,972 138,851 132,322
163,786 172,885 169,928 179,549
The contractual maturities of above financial
liabilities are:
Term loans: (principle+future interest)
Up to 90 days 4,848 1,367 4,900 1,521
91 - 180 days 1,110 1,361 1,162 1,471
181 - 365 days 3,028 2,656 3,046 2,488
More than 365 days 7,235 25,062 7,283 25,135
16,221 30,446 16,391 30,615
Short term loans: (principle+future interest)
Up to 90 days 6,553 13,581 6,553 13,581
91 - 180 days 1,524 2,780 1,524 2,780
181 - 365 days - - - -
8,077 16,361 8,077 16,361
Bank borrowings: (principle+future interest)
Up to 90 days 7,361 5,975 7,628 6,202
91 - 180 days 663 724 663 724
181 - 365 days 745 201 745 201
8,769 6,900 9,036 7,127
Trade and other payables:
Up to 90 days 57,137 59,229 61,613
91 - 180 days 25,416 20,473 26,599
181 - 365 days 31,108 27,562 30,797 RISEENA S h
More than 365 days 19,459 18,708 19,842 '. 18985 \%
133,120 125,972 138,851 ([ (130572251

@
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39. Financial instruments and related risk management (continued)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Amount in RO ‘000s

Cash 31 Dec
Parent Company 1 Jan 2022 flows Others 2022
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 35,385 (5,844) (4,807) 24,734
Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 11,528 (9,880) 4,284 5,932
Total liabilities from financing activities 46,913 (15,724) (523) 30,666
31 Dec
Parent Company 1Jan 2021 Cash flows Others 2021
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 46,711 (14,820) 3,494 35,385
Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 10,732 4,386 (3,590) 11,528
Total liabilities from financing activities 57,443 (10,434) (96) 46,913
Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
Cash 31 Dec
Group 1 Jan 2022 flows Others 2022
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 35,666 (5,844) (4,713) 25,109
Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 11,561 (9,823) 4,230 5,968
Total liabilities from financing activities 47,227 (15,667) (483) 31,077
31 Dec
Group 1 Jan 2021 Cash flows Others 2021
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 47,015 (14,820) 3,471 35,666
Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 10,819 4,442 (3,700) 11,561
Total liabilities from financing activities 57,834 (10,378) (229) 47,227

The ‘Others’ column includes the effect of reclassification of non-current portion of interest-bearing
loans and borrowings, including lease liabilities to current due to the passage of time.

At 31 December 2022, the exposure to letter of credit facilities stood at RO 25,166 (2021: RO 13,028
thousand for the purchase of goods.

C.R.No. 1015133
P.O. Box 533
P.C. 100, Muscat
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40.

41.

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair values
Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial assets consist of bank balances, contract work in progress, contract receivables and trade
and other receivables and investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. Financial
liabilities consist of term loans, bank borrowings and trade and other payables.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their carrying values.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below :

(@) Revenue recognition

The revenue recognition of the Group is line with IFRS 15 requirements. It uses the input method
in accounting for its construction contracts. At each reporting date, the Group is required to
estimate the stage of completion and costs to complete on its construction contracts. This
requires the Group to make estimates of future costs to be incurred, based on work to be
performed beyond the reporting date. These estimates also include the cost of potential claims
by subcontractors and the cost of meeting other contractual obligations to the customers.

Effects of any revision to these estimates are reflected in the period in which the estimates are
revised. When the expected contract costs exceeds the total anticipated contract revenue, the
total expected loss is recognised immediately, as soon as foreseen, whether or not work has
commenced on these contracts. The Group uses its commercial and planning team to estimate
the costs to complete of construction contracts. Factors such as delays in expected completion
date, changes in the scope of work, changes in material prices, labour costs and other costs are
included in the construction cost estimates based on best estimates updated on a regular basis.

The Group includes variable consideration (including claims, re-measurable contract values and)
in the transaction price to which it expects to be entitled from the inception of the contract. The
amount of variable consideration will have to be restricted to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

(b) Impairment of claims recognised in contract work in progress and contract receivables

(i) The Group has filed certain claims with its Government and Quasi Government customers and
made an assessment of the recoverable amount of claims based on ongoing negotiations at
the reporting date, which in some cases involve arbitration and litigation. In accordance with

@
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41. Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

(b) Impairment of claims recognised in contract work in progress and contract receivables
(continued)

(i) The claims raised by the Group against the customers are mainly in relation to variations from the
originally agreed contract scope, changes in costs incurred due to the effects of royal decrees
issued after the commencement of contracts and additional costs incurred due to extension of
the project completion time. Claims are determined mostly based on evaluation by third party
consultants appointed by the Group and the Group’s internal experts. The determination of
claims to be recovered requires the use of estimates based on the evaluation performed by
third party consultants and stage of negotiations of these claims with customers. The amount
of claims which will be accepted by the customers after negotiations may be different from
the amount claims recognized in the financial statements. Management is of the view that the
amount of claims to be recovered from customers will not be less than the amount recognized in
these financial statements.

Other estimates that involve uncertainties and judgments which have significant effect on the
financial statements include whether any liquidated damages will apply when there has been a
delay in completion of contracts.

(i) An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable is made when collection of
the full amount is no longer probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is
performed on an individual basis.

At the reporting date, the Group’s contract billed receivables were RO 58,430 (2021: RO 85,158)
thousand, most of these receivables were from Government and quasi Government entities.
This balance includes value of RO 36,883 (2021: RO 33,591) thousand certification in process,
which is in the normal course of business activity in the construction industry. At 31 Dec 2022,
the provision for expected credit losses against contract receivables and work in progress was
RO 17,351 (2021: RO 38,008) thousand. Management believes the balance amounts are fully
recoverable. In addition to this, the Group’s trade receivables were RO 6,921 (2021: RO 6,553)
thousand.

(i)  The Parent Company had four arbitration proceedings against Haya Water, relating to the Seeb
Sewage Network Project.

Galfar and Haya Water has made a settlement agreement in March 2022 and all the payments
agreed in the settlement agreement have been received by Galfar in April 2022. In view of the
settlement agreement all the proceedings both legal / arbitration between both the parties have
been closed without any further dispute.

\R.No. 1015133
P.0. Box 533

P.C. 100, Muscat
Suitanate of Oman

@



Notes to the financial statements _,H:_.

As at 31 December 2022 Gdlfqr

41.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

(b)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Impairment of claims recognised in contract work in progress and contract receivables
(continued)

The Parent Company had lodged arbitration cases against Haya towards recovery of
penalty deducted by Haya towards Al Ansab STP project. Arbitration was awarded in favour
of Galfar on 28 June 2018 for RO 2.63 million plus legal cost of RO 0.14 million. Haya had
filed an appeal to nullify the arbitration award. On 21 January 2019 Court had rejected
Haya’s nullity case. Haya submitted appeal before the Supreme Court against this judgment
and Court accepted Haya challenge on 31 December 2019 and referred the case back to
the Appeal Court for further proceedings. On 31 May 2020 Galfar started the enforcement
procedure. The Second Appeal court accepted Haya’s nullification on 17 September
2020 and Galfar submitted the second petition before Supreme Court on 25 October 2020.
On 12 September 2022 Galfar received second and final Supreme Court Judgment which
rejected Galfar appeal and nullified the arbitration award and arbitration case totally closed.
Subsequently, Galfar filed the commercial case before Muscat Primary Court claiming RO 2.81
million along with the interest of 7% from the penalty deduction dated 14 February 2013 till the
case registration date amounting to RO 1.83 million and the subsequent period until the full
payment date and first hearing was on 11 December 2022, where the court has directed Haya
Water to file their reply by 26 February 2023.

The Parent Company has on 15 August 2022 served a ‘Notice of Dispute’ against M/s.

Petrofac towards recovery of extension of time with associated costs, unapproved
variations and unagreed back charges with M/s. Petrofac for USD 13.83 million for the
project ‘Sub-contract for EPC of Building Works-Salalah LPG Project and USD 42.94
million for the project ‘Sub-contract for CMEI Works E&F Area -Salalah LPG Project.
On 13 September 2022, the Parent Company has issued notice to M/s. Petrofac that the dispute
will be referred for arbitration as per the conditions of the contract. On 30 September 2022 the
Parent Company has received M/s. Petrofac’s request for arbitration from ICC. On 27 October
2022, the Parent Company has submitted the ‘Answer’ to M/s. Petrofac’s request for arbitration
and it’s counter claim to ICC. On 20 December 2022, both parties have agreed and informed
the ICC to consolidate the arbitrations. Chairperson for arbitration has been appointed and
preliminary meeting is awaited.

The Parent Company has on 8 January 2023 served a ‘Notice of Dispute’ against M/s. Saipem
S.PA. towards the entitlement of extension of time with associated costs, unapproved variations
and unagreed back charges with M/s. Saipem S.PA. for USD 58.09 million for the project
‘Sub-contract of Mechanical, Electrical, Instrumentation and Piping Fabrication Works for sub-
package A&C-Dugm Refinery Package 3 Offsite Facilities’ project. Since amicable settlement
of dispute was not achieved, the Parent Company issued the ‘Request for Arbitration’ Q23
February 2023 to M/s. Saipem S.P.A. through ICC. N
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41.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become
old or obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realisable value through physical verification
of inventories carried out annually. As majority of the inventories are at ongoing project sites
these are considered as usable in nature by management as these are closely monitored by the
respective project teams. Dedicated project teams also monitors surplus inventories on closed/
completed jobs for assessing their usability to consider necessary provisions. Amounts which
are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a
provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence.
Management believes that provision of RO 689 (2021: RO 862) thousand for the Group is
adequate (refer Note 8).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment for calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the
expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual
value and useful lives annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted where the
management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates (refer Note 3).

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36 to determine when an intangible asset recognised
is impaired. This determination requires significant judgement and in making this judgement,
the management evaluates, among other factors, the carrying amount of the entity’s intangible
assets and the future free cash flows from the operations of these entities which are based on the
project feasibility reports and long-term business outlook for the investee, including factors such
as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and the operational and financing
cash flow.

The management tests annually whether these intangible assets of the Group have suffered any
impairment in accordance with IAS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets’ which require the use of the above
estimates (refer Note 4).

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and associates

The Group reviews its investments in associates and subsidiaries periodically and evaluates for
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence includes the performance of associates
and subsidiaries, significant decline in carrying value below its costs, the future business model,
local economic conditions and other relevant factors. Based on objective evidences the Group
. . . . . . e )
determines the need for impairment loss on investment in associates and subsidiaries (¢&

Notes 6 and 7).
@
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41. Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimates and assumptions (continued)
(g) Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations and the amount and timing
of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and nature of existing
contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax
income and expense already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable
estimates, for possible consequences of finalisation of tax assessments of respective Group
companies. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of
previous tax assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity
and the responsible tax authority (refer Note 26).

(h) Leases

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination
options - Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
The Group has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms. The
Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to
renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the
renewal. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not
to exercise) the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., a change in business strategy, construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset).

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the fund
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit ratings).

42. Reclassification of comparative information

Comparative figures for the previous year have been reclassified/re-arranged, wherever Q,
conform with the presentation in the current year’s financial statements. ([ B e
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